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Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

and has therefore played a signiﬁcam‘ role in managing the integration,
involving the management across the relevant divisions of both Tokio
Marine and Nichido Fire. As a result, the 'integration has moved forv;/ard
successfully. L v

Much to our regret, in 2002 Nichido Fire received administrative dis-
positions from the Japanese Financial Services Agency pursuant to the
Insurance Bﬁsiness Law. Taking the incident very seriously, Millea Hold-
ings is makiﬁg the utmost effort to prevent a reoccurrence By improving
compliance functions throughout the Millea Group.

Life Insurance Business

" Millea Holdings aims for further growth in the life insurance business as
a core business of the Miliea Group. To strengthen its life insurance sub-
sidiaries, Millea Holdings made The Tokio Marine Life Insurance Com-
pany, Limited (“Tokio Marine Life”, a former subsidiary of Tokio Ma-
rine) and The Nichido Life Insurance Company, Limited (“Nichido Life”,
a former subsidiary of Nichido Fire) difectly owned subsidiaries on April
1, 2003. Subject to the approval of relevant government authoritieé, the
two companies will be merged into Tokio Marine & Nichido Life Insur-
ance Co., Ltd. on October 1, 2003. As a result, Millea Holdings’ life in-
surance business is expected to work more closely with the property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries, thereby increasing productivity and effi-

ciency.

Overseas Insurance Business

Millea Holdings is working aggressively to expand its overseas insur-
ance business with a focus on the Asian market, which is expected to be a
window to high prdﬁtability and growth in the future. To expedite growth
in the Asian insurance business, Millea Asia Pte. Ltd. (*“Millea Asia”)
was launched as an intermediate holding company in Singapore, in De-
cember 2002. Millea Holdings transferred the Asian insurance operations
of Tokio Marine to Millea Asia in April 2003. Millea Asia is responsible
for new business development in the region. In December 2002, Millea
Asia invested in Newa Insurance Co., Ltd., a property and casualty insur-
ance company in Taiwan. In April 2003, Millea Asia signed an agreement
concemning the investment in Sino Life Insurance Co., Ltd., a life insurer
in China, jointly with Tokio Marine.

Other Businesses

Millea Holdings is promoting other businesses that have significant syn-
ergies with insurance operations, comprising asset management, health
care and senior-citizen-related services, risk consulting and staffing ser-
vices. As a part of its efforts in these businesses during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2003, Millea Holdings established Millea Real-Estate-
Risk Management, Inc. in February 2003, as a real estate investment ad-

visory company. Accordingly, the Millea Group is expanding its exper-
tise in asset management to the field of real estate investment in an effort
to increase Group earnings. Moreover, Millea Holdings made Tokio
Marine’s and Nichido Fire’s affiliated staffing companies its direct sub-
sidiaries in March 2003, and merged its four staffing subsidiaries in July
2003 to grow its staffing and human resources related business.

Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire

Start of Medium-Term Plans

Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire have started their two-year medium-term
‘management plans from the fiscal year under review. The two companies
made concerted efforts to advance marketing and tackle various issues
under their respective medium-term plans.

Launch of “Super Insurance” and “Super Business Insurance”.

Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire began ,éelliﬁg “Super Insurance”, a jointly
developed product, during the fiscal year under review. “Super Insur-
ance” fully integrates property and casualty and life insurance products.
Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire intend to-offer lifetime security to their
customers through the marketing of this product, which is a new business
approach. For their corporate customers, Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire
released “Super Business Insurance”, which was also jointly developed.
“Super Business Insurance” offers comprehensive coverage for various

risks faced by corporations.

Over-the-Counter Sales at Banks

The range of property and casualty and life insurance products eligible
for over-the-counter sales at banks was expanded during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2003 as a result of further deregulation. The property
and casualty and life insurance subsidiaries of the Millea Group achieved
significant results from their efforts to market their products at banks.

Agents On-Line

The Group has made efforts in developing the on-line systems for agents
to increase work efficiency and strengthen sales capabilities at both in-
surance companies and agents. During the fiscal year ended March 31,
2003, Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire began to develop “Millea Partners
Net”, a new on-line system for agents utilizing broadband communica-

tions.

Asset Management
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, Tokio Marine and Nichido
Fire continued to enhance the sophistication of their risk management

while enhancing investment returns. To cover payments of claims and
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maturity refunds, the companies further reinforced asset stability and 1i-
quidity. Both Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire have made progress in re-
ducing their equity holdings, and during the fiscal year under review,
Tokio Marine sold approximately 200 billion yen in shares through ex-
change traded funds. Tokio Marine also engaged in defined contribution
pension plan and investment trust operations as-a part of its asset man-
agement business.

Business and Capital Tie-Ups between Tokio Marine and Nisshin Fire
Tokio Marine agreed with The Nisshin Fire and Marine Insurance Com-
pany, Limited (“Nisshin Fire”) to form business alliances for products
and services and on a capital tie-up. By the end of March 2005, Tokio
Marine inténds to acquire approximafel? one-third of the total outstand-
ing shares of Nisshin Fire. Millea Holdings believes that this business
and capital tie-up is meaningful from the perspective of further strength-
ening the positive and cooperative relationship between the two compa-
nies. It allows for the acquiéition of expertiée while lending support to
Nisshin Fire’s retail sales strategy, and opens up sales opportunities for
the Millea Group’s life insurance products through Nisshin Fire’s distri-
bution channels.

Tokio Marine Life and Nichido Life

By the end of December 2002, Tokio Marine Life had achieved a mile-
stone by surpassing the one-million mark for its number of policies in-
force written for individual life and annuity insurance, Moreover, Tokio
Marine Life released “Medical Mini”, a medical insurance product fea-
turing simplified terms and conditions at an affordable price, thereby con-
tinuing to expand its business during the fiscal year ended March 31,
2003. Likewise, Nichido Life also increased its number of policies in-
force.

Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2003

Millea Holdings’ operating income for the fiscal year ended March31,
2003 increased by ¥529.9 billion from the previous fiscal year to ¥2,178.5
billion, primarily including property and casualty insurance premiums
earned of ¥1,761.0 billion, life premiums of ¥262.5 billion, net invest-
ment income of ¥108.3 billion, realized losses on investments of ¥29.9
billion, and gains on derivatives of ¥76.6 billion.

Operating costs and expenses amounted to ¥1,977.1 billion, primarily
including losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses of ¥1,030.1 bil-
lion, policy acquisition costs of ¥571.1 billion, policy benefits and losses
for life of ¥223.3 billion, and other operating expenses of ¥96.7 billion.

As a result, income before income tax expense, extraordinary items
and cumulative effect of accounting changes amounted to ¥201.3 billion,

an increase of ¥92.6 billion or 85.3% from the previous fiscal year. The

main reason for this increase was impfovement in underwriting results
and increase in gains on derivatives that are mainly utilized in Millea
Holdings’ hedging activities for asset and liability management. Income
tax expense increased by ¥38.2 billion to ¥71.6 billion.

Net income for the year amounted to ¥378.0 billion, an increase of
¥217.3 billion or 135.2% from the previous fiscal year. Net income for
the year includes extraordinary items amounting to ¥248.3 billion, which
is unaliocated negative goodwill arising from the business combination
with Nichido Fire. .

Readers should note that the financial results for the previous fiscal
year represent those of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings.

Looking Ahead

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2004, adverse conditions are
expected to prevail in the Japanese economy amid uncertainty for the
outlook of the global economy, conservative capital investment at corpo-
rations, and weak consumer confidence.

In the insurance industry, we expect companies to compete in terms of
various service offerings, products and premium rates while making their
operations more efficient.

Millea Holdings aims to maximize the corporate value of the Group
through the initiatives and targets outlined in its business plans, while
bolstering risk management and compliance functions. In addition, we
aim to advance the merger of Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire as well as
that of Tokio Marine Life and Nichido Life.

All of our Group management and employees are doing their best at
coordinating efforts to improve the profitability, growth potential and
soundness of the Millea Group. We thank you for your continued guid-
ance and support.
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Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Net Premiums Written
and Loss Ratios

(Yen in billions)

Hull

Net Premiums Written
by Line of Insurance
(Yen in billions)

Compulsory Automobile
Liability
Other

140 142 142

Automobile

Fire and Allied Lincs @
Cargo and Transit ! &

'99 °00 *01° 702 '03 ! ’69°00 *01 '02 03
«mex LOSS Ratio (%)

g

Automobile Personal Accident

g gL
’99 °00 01 *02 °03

e LOSS Ratio (%)

Combined Loss
and Expense Ratios
%)

weme. Loss Ratio (%)

Net Income per ADS
(Yen)

-Ratio of Expenses
to Premiums Written

-Ratio of Loss and
Loss Adjustment Expenses
to Premiums Eamed

-
'02°0

N

=

102 '03

Cargo and Transit

'99°00°

anne LOSS Ratio (%)

Other

147 4718 1743
B oo 95

99 00 *01 02 *0

s LOSS Raitio (%)

vy}

Fire and Allied Lines

259.0

1592 1576 159.5

)

99’00 '01 02 "03

o L0SS Ratio (%)

Compulsory
Automobile Liability

wemen L0388 Ratio (%)

Breakdown of
Investment Assets
%)

Fixed Maturities
51.8

Shon-Term Invesiments
79

Other Long-Term
Investments
6.7

Policy Loans

04

Equity Securities
304

Real Estate
10

Mongage Loans on Real Estate
18

Millea Holdings' financial results for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Murine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings.
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Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Analysis of Insurance Premiums Written—Property and Casualty

(Yen in millions)

Years ended March 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Hull:
Direct premiums WITHEN ......ccooeriievencrrinnrecicrmeeees ¥ 19173 ¥ 19451 ¥ 16,554 ¥ 17,342 ¥ 20,042
Reinsurance premiums assumed ..........cooveevecrvccrererennens 9,390 8,961 6,927 7,673 9,656
Reinsurance premiums ceded ..........ooviicinncnciennn. 14,363 14,212 9,520 10,461 12,317
Net premiums WIHED .....c.cccoviniiniionneisncneeeenn 14,200 14,200 13,961 14,554 17,381
Ratio to total all lines .....ccooovcvveriiricnccenenniirecrcnnenenns 0.75% 1.03% 1.05% 1.12% 1.33%
Cargo and Transit:
Direct premiums WIIETl .....co.cooovermeiiinsiiiericieinannnes ¥ 67660 ¥ 59964 ¥ 39317 ¥ 57,734 ¥ 65,575
Reinsurance premiums assumed .........ocooiverieevcneneen. 4,458 3,960 2,751 3,041 5,256
Reinsurance premiums ceded ..........oeeevvnnrenciinriinenncne 9,745 8,631 9,029 7,885 9,795
Net premiums WILEN .......cooevriivnniiireeeneeenene 62,373 55,293 53,039 52,890 61,036
Ratio to total all liNes ....c..oveiveiveririieeeiee e 3.29% 4.00% 4.01% 4.07% 4.68%
Fire and Allied Lines:
Direct premiums WIAtten ...........cccoeoirirneeiereernenns ¥ 290,189 ¥ 198,155 ¥ 189,755 ¥ 184,282 ¥ 185,763
Reinsurance premiums assumed ..........covvernenininenenns 36,630 24,067 10,881 11,389 12,846
Reinsurance premiums ceded........oovvviiiiiinniiiiienn 67,838 44,587 41,171 38,077 39,403
Net premiums WIHIEN ..ot 258,981 177,635 159,465 157,594 159,206
Ratio to total all 1ines .....c...ocoovvviriiiriiirececee e 13.64% 12.86% 12.05% 12.14% 12.20%
Automobile:
Direct premiums WITHEN ..o ¥ 909341 ¥ 708,532 ¥ 695711 ¥ 672,154 ¥ 662,867
Reinsurance premiums assumed .........c.ccccvneennerreneen. 6,374 3,146 1,509 2,889 3,380
Reinsurance premiums ceded ..., 17,596 10,788 10,554 10,451 10,402
Net premiums WIHEN .......cc.ocovvvevurermecermerneenrecrcesnecones 898,119 700,890 686,666 664,592 655,845
Ratio to total all liNes ....cccoveieeriniiincrnnine v 47.31% 50.73% 51.86% 51.20% 50.25%
Personal Accident:
Direct premiums WIHEN ......co.ovvviurerreneerniireereecrennaeens ¥ 157434 ¥ 125,183 ¥ 130,608 ¥ 131,526 ¥ 135,555
Reinsurance premiums assumed 2,954 379 216 308 316
Reinsurance premiums ceded...........oenreinrincnncienenens 5,311 4335 4,756 2,760 3,028
Net premiums WEHEDN ......o.ooveeienrercriinrenesn e 155,077 121,227 126,068 129,074 132,843
Ratio to total all HINES ...evveverienrn e 8.17% 8.78% 9.52% 9.94% 10.18%
Other:
Direct premiums WEtET! .........ccooveurerrercnncereerereseneecs ¥ 235025 ¥ 204,773 ¥ 184,605 ¥ 181,243 ¥ 180,789
Reinsurance premiumsassumed ...........ccccoceniorineecnns 53,121 37,595 15,611 17,525 19,205
Reinsurance premiums ceded .....c.cooviiiecincnnininerinnenes 59,222 45,033 25,881 26,963 25,275
Net premiums written 228,924 197,335 174,335 171,805 174,719
Ratio to total all lines 12.05% 14.28% 13.17% 13.25% 13.38%
Total (excluding compulsory automobile liability):
Direct premiums WEEEEN .........oeivveniiieriereerererernces ¥1,678,822  ¥1,316,058 ¥1,276,550  ¥1,244281  ¥1,250,591
Reinsurance premiums assumed .......c.cccoooveeneecermrnennns 112,927 78,108 37,895 42,825 50,659
Reinsurance premiums €eded .......c.oeiiicvceininiiiincenes 174,075 127,586 100,911 96,597 100,220
Net Premiums WEHEN .....c.occveireerniienie e e 1,617,674 1,266,580 1,213,534 1,190,509 1,201,030
Ratio to total all BHnes ...cv.ovvcveiecenriiircceieevcrc e 85.21% 91.68% 91.66% 91.72% 92.02%
Compulsory Automobile Liability:
Direct premiums WITHEN .......cocoeiriiinecnerrrereneeernanenes ¥ 308,641 ¥ 193,557 ¥ 191,811 ¥ 186911 ¥ 179,179
Reinsurance premiums assumed .........cccoocceeerivnninecnns 212,420 60,254 56,222 54,361 53,035
Reinsurance premiums ceded ........ooecorceiinereiienreenns 240,178 138,908 137,660 133,797 128,106
Net premiums written 280,883 114,903 110,373 107,475 104,108
Ratio to total all lines 14.79% 8.32% 8.34% 8.28% 7.98%
Total All Lines:
Direct premiums WIHEN ......cocoiviveeieereiece s ¥1,987,463  ¥1,509,615 ¥1,468361 ¥1431,192  ¥1,429,770
Reinsurance premiums assumed ............ccooccevvrnnrenans 325,347 138,362 94,117 97,186 103,694
Reinsurance premiums ceded .........ocovveieieiniiinnnnenns 414,253 266,494 238,571 230,394 228,326
Net premiums WITHEN .......ooeveienneree e eenieeies 1,898,557 1,381,483 1,323,907 1,297,984 1,305,138
Ratio to total all BNeS .ovevvevivveveiiiic et 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Millea Holdings” financial results for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor 1o Miflea Holdings.
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Loss and Expense Ratios—Property and Casualty

(1) All Lines Other than Compulsory Automobile Liability:

(Yen in millions)

Years ended March 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Hull:
Net premiums WIHEN .........oecoovvreveenrnnercce e ¥ 14200 ¥ 14200 ¥ 13961 ¥ 14,554 ¥ 17,381
Premiumseamed ......ccooooveiiiieiieieie e e, 14,477 13,709 14,102 15,260 19,351
L0SSESINCUITED ...t e 13,050 9,327 8,584 8,942 9,809
LOSSTALIO ..ot eeaean 90.1% 68.0% 60.9% 58.6% 50.7%
Cargo and Transit:
Net premiums WITHEN ..o.o.vcciereiiiieecne s ¥ 62373 ¥ 55293 ¥ 53039 ¥ 52,890 ¥ 61,036
Premiumsearned ...........ccooeiiiiiiinice e 62,017 53,864 52,990 53,455 62,644
LOSSESINCUITE ...oeocvvieeie e s s s 28,939 27,854 28,009 26,817 31,527
LOSSTALIO ...ooviiiiceeiiir et 46.7% 51.7% 52.9% 50.2% 50.3%
Fire and Allied Lines:
Net Premiums WETEEDN ..........ovveviveoreerniereeeeereneerevennas ¥ 258981 ¥ 177,635 ¥ 159465 ¥ 157,594 ¥ 159,206
Premiums earned ........coccocvvvveeieiiveevcnirere s 239,318 162,627 153,695 143,900 148,441
Lossesincurred ..o 84,363 64,706 63,267 86,836 74,253
LOSSTALO ...oviev et et 35.3% 39.8% 41.2% 60.3% 50.0%
Automobile:
Net premiums WIEEN .......oovvcvrerneeneeeeneeeceeeirieseennds ¥ 898,119 ¥ 700,890 ¥ 686,666 ¥ 664,592 ¥ 655,845
Premiumseamed ......cocoeecvieiiiviiiveeee e e 902,491 703,395 682,396 663,696 661,334
Lossesincurred . ......cccooeiiiiieiiiieeecieeee e 510,457 391,358 428273 397,901 377,982
LOSSTALIO w.eeeevvei e ireeecreeni e s beesne s esaeresee st reeene e 56.6% 55.6% 62.8% 60.0% 57.2%
Personal Accident:
Net premiums WIHED .c..cocoooviviireireeereieeeeeee e ¥ 155,077 ¥ 121,227 ¥ 126,068 ¥ 129,074 ¥ 132,843
Premiums €arned ...oo.eveeiviiiveriveiensieresn e e e eveaeseens 155,603 123,976 131,602 133,232 137,883
L0SSESINCUITED ..ot 66,604 53,740 56,993 57,558 57,395
LOSSTALIO ..ovovieveiiieiet et 42.8% 43.3% 43.3% 43.2% 41.6%
Other:;
Net premiums WIIten ......ocoovveeicerereeccc e ¥ 228924 ¥ 197,335 ¥ 174335 ¥ 171,805 ¥ 174,719
Premiums eamed ..o 212,988 175,427 167,981 165,033 175,699
LOSSESINCUITED .ouvvvivivieicce et 120,786 117,885 124,344 97,693 90,453
LOSSTAHO cvvveerieveieri e evsiercbe v s 56.7% 67.2% 74.0% 59.2% 51.5%
Total:
Net premiums WIItten ...........oocooveeivreeicreiieecens ¥1,617,674 ¥1,266,580  ¥1,213,534  ¥1,190,509  ¥1,201,030
Premiumseamned .........cocoooeoiiieii s 1,586,894 1,232,998 1,202,766 1,174,576 1,205,352
L0SSeSINCUITEd ....ovcviiieice e 824,199 664,870 709,470 675,747 641,419
LOSSTALIO .ovvoieiiieien ettt 51.9% 53.9% 59.0% 57.5% 53.2%
Loss adjustment expenses incurred—unallocated ............. ¥ 58885 ¥ 47307 ¥ 40,575 ¥ 41,695 ¥ 42,107
Ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred to premiums eamned ... 55.6% 57.8% 62.4% 61.1% 56.7%
Underwriting and administrative expenses
INCUITEd ..ovviviiviie e e ¥ 579,885 ¥ 440,398 ¥ 438,886 ¥ 432,616 ¥ 442,149
Ratio of underwriting and administrative expenses
incurred to Premiums WIHen ..........coooeiioeverccninee e 35.8% 34.8% 36.2% 36.3% 36.8%
Combined loss and eXpense ratio .............cccceovenrvicecnrenns 91.4% 92.6% 98.6% 97.4% 93.5%
10
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Loss and Expense Ratios—Property and Casualty—(Continued)

(2) Compulsory Automobile Liability:

(Yen in millions)

Years ended March 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Net premiums WHEN ........o.oooeeiiiiiiinec e ¥ 280,883 ¥ 114903 ¥ 110373 ¥ 107475 ¥ 104,108
Premiums earned .........occoerriieninie e e 174,074 109,964 107,973 106,972 106,787
L0SSES INCUITEA ..ottt 129,482 71,895 70,218 67,257 63,652
LOSS TAT0 vttt et 74.4% 65.4% 65.0% 62.9% 59.6%

Loss adjustment expenses incurred—unallocated ............. ¥ 17527 ¥ 14142 ¥ 12,795 ¥ 11,067 ¥ 10,741
Ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses

incurred to premiums eamed .............ociireineieeeenes 84.5% 78.2% 76.9% 73.2% 69.7%
Underwriting and administrative expenses

INCUITEA oot e ¥ 50,120 ¥ 4292 ¥ 41019 ¥ 43,7705 ¥ 43,988
Ratio of underwriting and administrative expenses
incurred to premiums WIHen ........c.ccooeevieccrins e 17.8% 36.7% 37.2% 40.7% 42.3%
Combined loss and expense ratio ...........c.ccovevcvevrernenrennns 102.3% 114.9% 114.1% 113.9% 112.0%
(3) All Lines:
(Yen in millions)

Years ended March 31 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Net premiums WIHEN ...........cocooiriiiiincic e ¥1,898,557  ¥1,381,483  ¥1,323,907 ¥1,297,984  ¥1,305,138
Premiums eamed ... 1,760,968 1,342,962 1,310,739 1,281,548 1,312,139
L0SSeS INCUITEA ......coveireneiiieeee et e 953,681 736,765 779,688 743,004 705,071

LOSS FALO «c.eveeeeeecceeecic ettt 54.2% 54.9% 59.5% 58.0% 53.7%

Loss adjustment expenses incurred—unallocated ............. ¥ 76412 ¥ 61449 ¥ 53370 ¥ 52,762 ¥ 52,848
Ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses ‘

incurred to premiums amed .......c..cocovvvveernerecnimrcerennins 58.5% 59.4% 63.6% 62.1% 57.8%
Underwriting and administrative expenses

INCUITEA ..ot ¥ 630,005 ¥ 482,590 ¥ 479905 ¥ 476,321 ¥ 486,137
Ratio of underwriting and administrative expenses

incurred to premiums WIItEN .......ccervrerincnniiericener e 33.2% 34.9% 36.2% 36.7% 37.2%
Combined loss and expense ratio ..............ccccoreieiecenenns 91.7% 94.3% 99.8% 98.8% 95.0%

These tabulations set forth information with respect to the property and casualty loss and expense ratios of Millea Holdings for the last five fiscal years. Loss ratios represent the
ratio of losses incurred to premiums earned. Millea Holdings' financial results for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea

Holdings.

11

Y A




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Investments
(Yen in millions)
% of Total Value Shown % of Total
Cost Investments on Balance Sheet Investments
March 31, 2003 and 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Securities held to maturity:
Fixed maturities:
Bonds and notes:
Government and government
agencies and authorities:
Other than United States ............. ¥ 866,971 ¥ 453,453 11.62% 8.68%¥ 866,971 ¥ 453,453 10.39% 6.34%
All other corporate bonds ................ 16,365 16,735 0.22 0.32 16,365 16,735 0.19 0.25
Total fixed maturities held to
ALY oo 883,336 470,188 11.84 9.00 883,336 470,188 10.58 7.09
Securities available for sale:
Fixed maturities:
Bonds and notes:
Government and government
agencies and authorities:
United States.......cccceeovvvrevirennne, 140,150 43313 1.88 0.83 145,505 50,901 1.74 0.77
Other ..o, 1,935,175 903,702 2595 17.29 2,073,303 920,199 24.85 13.88

2,075,325 947,015 27.83 18.12 2,218,808 971,100 26.59  14.65

States, municipalities and political

subdivisions:
United States.......coocovevrceeeneeas 44 109 0.00 0.00 64 174  0.00 0.00
Other ..o 244,826 299,885 3.28 5.74 264,318 323832 317 4.89
244,870 299,994 3.28 5.74 264,382 324,006  3.17 4.89
Public UtIIHES .....veooveerr e 88,322 34,192 1.18 0.65 92,966 37,000 1.11 0.56
Convertibles and bonds with
warrants attached ........c.....cocoevrnn. 70,622 102,074 0.95 1.95 77,320 111,494 0.93 1.68
All other corporate bonds................. 693,321 490,545 9.29 9.39 715,048 505,369 8.56 7.62
Total bonds and notes .................... 3,172,460 1,873,820 4253 3585 3,368,524 1,948,969 40.36 29.40
Redeemable preferred stock ................ 53,100 53,100 0.73 1.02 53,100 53,100 0.65 0.81
Total fixed maturities .................... 3225560 1926920 4326 36.87 3,421,624 2,002,069 4101 3021
Equity securities:
Common stocks: ‘
Publicutilities .......ccooovevecverenee. 42,994 27,362 0.58 0.52 62,389 58,332 0.75 0.88
Banks, trust and insurance
COIMPATIES .. eveverreerrnnrerrinerresrereneans 296,261 199,838 3.97 3.82 293,903 274,397 3.52 4.14
Industrial, miscellaneous and all
Other .o 1,414,698 1,075,156 1897 20.58 2,089,070 2,296,656 25.03 34.65
Total common stocks ...................... 1,753,953 1,302,356 23,52 2492 2445362 2,629,385 2930 39.67
Nonredeemable preferred stocks ......... 88,859 64,206 1.19 1.23 88,859 64,206 1.07 0.96
Total equity securities ..........cce..... 1,842,812 1,366,562 24,71 26.15 2,534,221 2693591 30.37 40.63
Total securities available for sale ... 5,068,372 3293482 6797 63.02 5955845 4,695,660 71.38 70.84
Trading securities:
Fixed maturities:
Bonds and notes:
Government and government
agencies and authorities:

Other than United States ............. 24,877 — 0.33 — 24,577 — 029 —
Publicutilities ......ccoceveeriniiireennnn. 1,199 — 0.02 — 1,359 —  0.02 —
Total trading fixed matunities .......... 26,076 — 0.35 — 25,936 — 031 —

Mortgage loans on real estate .................. 148,655 144,323 1.99 2,76 148,655 144,323 1.78 2.18
Real estate—investment properties ......... 82,886 96,967 1.11 1.86 82,886 96,967 0.99 1.46
Policy 10ans ..o, 29,171 20,615 0.39 0.39 29,171 20,615 0.35 031
Other long-term investments................. 559,355 534,991 750 10.24 559,004 535,666 6.70 8.08
Short-term investments .......................... 660,370 665,406 885 12.73 660,370 665,406 791 10.04
Total investments ............................ ¥7,458,221 ¥5225972 100.00% 100.00%%¥8,345,203 ¥6,628,825 100.00% 100.00%

Millea Holdings’ financial results for the prior puriod represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, s predecessor to Millea Holdings.
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Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Yen in millions, (Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts) except per share amounts)
2003 200200t 200102 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Operating income:
Property and casualty:
Net premiums written (N0t 5) ....o.covvieevnrneeninenieenneenenn ¥1,898,557 ¥1,381,483 ¥1,323,907 $15,821,308
Less increase in unearned premitms ........coeeeeerereemrcreneerenns 137,589 38,521 13,168 1,146,575
Premiums earned (NOtE 5) ....covvevieeriererrereerinenereaineeninene 1,760,968 1,342,962 1,310,739 14,674,733
Life premiums (NOte 5) ..eocvivrneeiinirecre et 262,486 209,208 162,905 2,187,383
Net investment Income (MOt 4) ........ccvvevrrreeererenenrcrereeeienen. 108,311 104,681 127,852 902,592
Realized gains (losses) on investments (notes 2 and 4) ............ (29,875) (1,020) 56,142 (248,958)
Gains (1055e8) ON derivatiVes .......ccoeceueeeereeierrreneeeneeinecneereneee 76,564 (7,319) — 638,033
Total OPerating inCome ........cccoveverieererverervrsrenserencseseenes 2,178,454 1,648,512 1,657,638 18,153,783
Operating costs and expenses:
Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses (notes 5 and 8):
Losses and claims incurred and provided for ........cc.ocoeeeee. 953,681 736,765 779,688 7,947,342
Related adjustment EXPenses ......c.ouerveerereresereeereeereereneas 76,412 61,449 53,370 636,767
Total losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses ........... 1,030,093 798,214 833,058 8,584,109
Policy benefits and losses for life ........ccocoveivenececoe e 223,316 175,016 137,469 1,860,967
Income credited to investment deposits by policyholders ....... 56,011 57,507 59,509 466,758
Policy acquisition cOStS (NOE 6) ....c.coecevreuermeerenecererririevnieeaes 571,058 437,012 422,551 4,758,817
Other Operating EXPEISES ......cccccrererrrrerrerereirererereseresesssrsninens 96,668 72,095 72,017 805,566
Total operating costs and eXpenses .....c.c.ocevevreeeeeererrneens 1,977,146 1,539,844 1,524,604 16,476,217
Income before income tax expense, extraordinary items
and cumulative effect of accounting changes.................. 201,308 108,668 133,034 1,677,566
Income tax expense (benefit) (note 9):
CUITENL .ttt ettt eaes e e et eaee e ere e 92,935 53,960 12,886 774,458
DEferTed ..ottt (21,321) (20,544) 31,473 (177,676)
71,614 33416 44,359 596,782
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect
of accounting changes ..........ococevereeieceevierce e 129,694 75,252 88,675 1,080,784
Extraordinary items (Note 3) .......coovirevineiieicnnineencn e 248,323 — — 2,069,358
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax (note 1(g)) .. — 85,465 — —
NELINCOIMIE ...eiieiiieiecrieeie et ereirre e etesrereans e sresnenene e ¥ 378,017 ¥ 160,717 ¥ 88,675 $ 3,150,142
Amounts per American Depositary Share, each representing
0.005 shares of common stock in 2003 and 5 shares of common
stock in 2002 and 2001:
Basic and diluted:
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative
effect of accounting changes ........c.cccoeveveeeceeeinennnne ¥ 349 ¥ 244 ¥ 286 3 2.908
EXtraordinary Items «....ocevrerevieveveerereneererenesioresecrenennes 669 — — 5.575
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax ... — 275 — —
NELITCOIME ..ovviveieiriereseereiirerres et er e v seeves s erenes ¥ 1018 ¥ 519 ¥ 286 $ 8.483
Cashdividendsdeclared..........cccoooveiieinene e, ¥ 5000 ¥ 4250 ¥ 4250 $ 0.417
Weighted average and diluted common shares in thousands......... 1,857 1,549,692 1,549,692

Millea Holdings ' consolidated financial statements for the prior periods represent the financial vesulis of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. Certain reclassifications
have been made to the prior years' consolidated financial statements and related notes 1o conform to the 2003 presentation. See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial state-
ments.




Millea Holdings, inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2003 and 2002

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 20020042 2003
(Restated)

Assets
Investments - other than investments in related parties (notes 2 and 4);
Securities held to maturity:
Fixed maturities, at amortized cost [fair value ¥1,028,732 million
(88,572,767 thousands) in 2003; ¥476,405 million in 2002] .......ccccovevnnne ¥ 883336 ¥ 470,188 $ 7,361,133
Securities available for sale:

Fixed maturities, at fair value {amortized cost ¥3,225,560 million

($26,879,668 thousands) in 2003; ¥1,926,920 million in 2002] ........c........ 3,421,624 2,002,069 28,513,533
Equity securities, at fair value [cost ¥1,842,812 million
(815,356,767 thousands) in 2003; ¥1,366,562 million in 2002] ................. 2,534,221 2,693,591 21,118,508
Tradingsecurities:
Fixed maturities, at fair value [cost ¥26,076 million ($217,300
thousands) in 2003] .....ccoviiiiii e e 25,936 — 216,133
Mortgage 10ans on 1€al €SLALE .....ccvvrvvviriririiiesninr e e 148,655 144,323 1,238,792
INVeStmMEnt 1eal €StALE .....cecvveciieie ettt e b et 82,886 96,967 690,717
Policy 10anS ...ccoviiiiiiice e s 29,171 20,615 243,092
Other long-term iNVESHMEINES ......covcvevirerrtceeritre st seses e s st e s 559,004 535,666 4,658,367
ShOTt-tEITNINVESIINENS ...eeevviiieieeieee et srreeeeesteeeeseeesereeeteeersaesanreeseeesssnesaeens 660,370 665,406 5,503,083
TOtal INVESLIMENES ....viviiieeceeeire e e seeerectee e eraee st e sreeaeeaneene e saesneeeeneenreenns 8,345,203 6,628,825 69,543,358
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ........c.coiiriiereceneee e e e 339,978 322302 2,833,150
Premiums receivable and agents’ balances ......coccccvivuivnrinriecic e 176,010 163,861 1,466,750
Reinsurance recoverable on 1088es (NO1E 5) ..ocvocveveeriiiiiiiecrecee e e 450,345 332,687 3,752,875
Prepaid reinsurance premiums (NOE 5) ....c.oovveirrrerrierrierenineneeresenrineeseeesesnenene 300,847 195,814 2,507,058
Deferred policy acquisition Costs (DOt 6) ........e.eeeeeiririeieiriereseneeirireeeresesrenenes 422,480 301,723 3,520,667
Property and equipment, net of depreciation (NOte€ 7) ......cccceeeivieviniinniinrenecnens 204,078 200,422 1,700,650
Derivative assets (NOE 15) ..ioiiuiiiiireii et ee et ara e sre s e 341,279 207,212 2,843,992
OFNEL ASSELS .....veieeeieieteeiere et rre st abesr e s etesesreseeae s ena e sse e et eaaeasasseneseessennens 313,143 206,331 2,609,525
TOLAL@SSELS ..ovireieieeiieeererite s e et e et e st eaa s e ereressaees e sesbata st e st bareene s ¥10,893,363 ¥8,559,177 $90,778,025

Millea Holdings ' consolidated financial statements for the prior perfod represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. Certain reclassifications
have been made to the prior year's consolidated financial statements and related notes to conform to the 2003 presentation. See accompanying notes to consolidated financial state-
ments.




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets - (Continued)

March 31, 2003 and 2002
(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 200202 2003
(Restated)
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Policy liabilities and accruals:
Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses (n0te 8) ........c.oeeveecerernnenne ¥ 1,131,884 ¥ 875,463 $ 9,432,367
Uneamned premiums (NOLE 5) ..c..ovvrireirriiice et cse e senvseasse e se e s eesenae 1,761,155 1,177,512 14,676,292
Future policy benefits and 10SSEs ......coevvveermicnrinier e eeeeesrevecnns 713,418 462,597 5,945,150
Total policy liabilities and accruals .......coocevirrierrieneeneinesiecnee 3,606,457 2,515,572 30,053,809
Investment deposits by policYholders ..ot 2,716,526 2,131,834 22,637,717
Income tax liability (NO€ D) ..coovviiieiririeieeerrec e 437,560 575,700 3,646,333
Retirement and severance benefits (note 10) ....coovvvvieviieerenrrcieieecinrereeeeneen 324,003 237,982 2,700,025
Ceded reinsurance balances payable ..........cccovvereriricnerieienierresreneneeees 113,370 87,691 944,750
Debt outstanding (Ot€ 11) ...occoiiiiiiiniiiiireceeci e e e 177,880 110,000 1,482,333
Derivative Habilities (MOt 15) ..vovviiivrieieei e ee e st enes 203,011 93,692 1,691,758
Cashreceived under securities lending transactions...........cveeererrencerenserenas 248,214 149,212 2,068,450
Other liabilities (N0t 11) .ocveiiiiii e e e e e e 242,026 147,800 2,016,883
Total HAbIlIHES oot e 8,069,047 6,049,483 67,242,058
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock:
authorized 7,000,000 shares in 2003 and 2,500,000,000 shares in 2002
issued and outstanding 1,857,048.75 shares in 2003 and
1,549,692,481 sharesin 2002 .........ccooooviicenrieineeeeveeresee e seesress e e 150,000 101,995 1,250,000
Otherstockholders’ equity:
Additional paid-in capital ..o s 343,413 52,917 2,861,775
Retained earnings (notes 2 and 13) ...ccoeeeiiiiciin e 2,214,947 1,853,312 18,457,892
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized appreciation Of SECUMHES ...c.vvveeeireeeerereeeeeeniseeereneneenenecnaes 227,198 553,640 1,893,317
Foreign currency translation adjustments .............ccccoveevneviesccnniennsenns (15,254) (4,549) (127,117)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (note 10) .......ccocovrecrevcnrconennee (88,326) (47,621) (736,050)
Total accumulated other comprehensive inCOMe ......voceververierrevrnreenes 123,618 501,470 1,030,150
Treasury stock, at cost, 7,903 shares in 2003 .........c..occevimnnnirsinenirneerinenne (7,662) — (63,850)
Total stockholders” EQUILY ....cooeieeeiriee et e 2,824,316 2,509,694 23,535,967
Commitments and contingent liabilities (notes 5 and 14)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ eqUity .c..cccoovevrevecivniniccceie e ¥10,893,363 ¥8,559,177 $90,778,025

Millea Holdings' consolidated financial statements for the prior period represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. Certain reclassifications

have been made to the prior year's consolidated financial statements and related notes 1o conform to the 2003 presentation. See accompanying noies to consolidated financial state-
ments.




Miltea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 2002 20010 ) 2003
(Restated)
Common stock: .
Balance at beginning of year .........c.cocoovivvveninis e ¥ 101,995 ¥ 101,995 ¥ 101,995 $ 849,958
Adjustment in connection with the acquisition ..........cccc.e...... 48,005 — — 400,042
Balance at end of Year .........cocooevieii et 150,000 101,995 101,995 1,250,000
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of year ..........ccooeoviivenviniccvcnnee e, 52,917 52,917 52,917 440,975
Excess of cost of shares transferred over the amount of
common stock in connection with the acquisition.................. 289,780 — — 2,414,834
Gains on sales of treasury stock .......ccococooivveeeccccieeniene, 716 — — 5,966
Balance at end of YEar ......ccccoeiviviiieeiececee e 343,413 52917 52,917 2,861,775
Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of Year .........c.cocvvvveeeveivecrnieneneeeseeennn, 1,853,312 1,705,767 1,630,265 15,444,267
Net inCOme fOr YEar ..ccooviivvieecre et 378,017 160,717 88,675 3,150,142
Dividends paid (note 13) ...oooeveioiiiicccrcc e (16,382) (13,172) (13,173) (136,517)
Balanceatend of year .........ccoooeiiivvieiiiecice e T 2,214,947 1,853,312 1,705,767 18,457,892
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized appreciation of securities:
Balance at beginning of year .........ccccoveeeeinnvveneceiinee e 553,640 765,179 926,189 4,613,667
Change during Year ........ococoocovvieevvne e e seemiene s sraneas (326,442) (211,539) (161,010) (2,720,350)
Balance atend of year ..o 227,198 553,640 765,179 1,893,317
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year ..............ooeevviveeviercvnecnrienennn. (4,549) (21,666) (28,311 (37,909)
Change during year .........cccocovvvevnvnevecrnrennns FSUTRRU: (10,705) 17,117 6,645 (89,208)
Balance at end of year ..o (15,254) (4,549) (21,666) (127,117)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (note 10):
Balance at beginning of year .........cc.coccoovereice e (47,621) (17,648) (21,285) (396,843)
Change during Year ........ccceevvvreiviereeiivenesrseecsseeecveensse s (40,705) (29,973) 3,637 (339,207)
Balance atend of year ... e (88,326) (47,621) (17,648) (736,050)
Accumulated other comprehensive income at end of year 123,618 501,470 725,865 1,030,150
Treasury stock:
Balance at beginning of year ...........cooocoiiiviiccceee e, — — — —
Change QUIINE YEAT .......cooveererriririrre et eerere s enenes (7,662) — — (63,850)
Balanceatend of year..........ccoooovvvieiricccieeeree e (7,662) — — (63,850)
Total stockholders’ equity .......ccocovvviivv v e ¥2,824,316  ¥2,509,694 ¥2,586,544 $23,535,967

Millea Holdings' consolidated financial statements for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. See accompanying notes
to consolidated financial statements.




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 200200t 2) 2001(ne2) 2003
(Restated) (Restated)

Cash flows from operating activities:

NELINCOIME ..ot ee e e neeresene ¥ 378,017 ¥ 160,717 ¥ 88,675 $ 3,150,142
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Increase in losses, claims and loss adjustment expense
reserve, net of ceded reinSUrance ......oocvcevecveveveeveeennenne 21,090 28,346 35,389 175,750
Increase in unearned premiums, net of ceded
TEIMSUTANICE ...oeevveererrerirriuennresserseasensessrisssessesssessnesassees 136,405 38,411 13,192 1,136,708
Increase in future policy benefits for life .........ccoeveerennin. . 169,982 139,926 113,873 1,416,517
Increase in liability for current income taxes .........coo...... 1,126 38,494 2,532 9,383
Deferred inCoOmME taXES .oevvvivveeieiiiecrieree e sve e senaeens (22,796) 27,489 31473 (189,967)
Provision for retirement and severance benefits ............... (6,045) 12,893 7,150 (50,375)
Increase in deferred policy acquisition COSES ....c.c.eveeercenne (21,094) (24,338) (22,488) (175,783)
Depreciation ..o e 15,076 15,530 17,159 125,631
Extraordinary items—unallocated negative goodwill ...... (248,323) — — (2,069,358)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes ...........cccceeeunee. — (133,498) — —
Changes in derivative assets and liabilities—net.............. (24,748) 19,978 — (206,233)
Increase in other liabilities.........ccoocviiveriie e 62,255 7,689 18,654 518,792
Other —NEL eevrereieriieieeeecs e er v e s sbenas 5356 15,248 7,556 44,635
Net cash provided by operating activities ........ccc.eueucn. 466,301 346,885 313,165 3,885,842

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from investments sold or matured:

Fixed maturitieS Sold .....ccooeivireirieiiice e e 542,909 335,280 296,843 4,524,242
Fixedmaturitiesredeemed ........ccoocovverveieonovreercereeirens 730,057 436,752 261,102 6,083,808
EQUItY SECUTILIES ...vvoveeeeiireieicerrcrreeereer e 421,892 94,796 125,080 3,515,767
Mortgage loans onreal eState .........cooceeeiiimiecrciiicinnicnnes 37,393 35,953 20,093 311,608
Investmentreal eState .......ccoooiiviviveiii e e 12,025 16,306 8,095 100,208
PONCY L08NS ..ovivieiceirie s 25,606 22,403 21,991 213,383
Otherlong-term INVESIMENES .....ccoocvurveereeeresrereeeesrenneseene 400,245 211,793 307,232 3,335,375

Millea Holdings' consolidated financial statements for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. Certain reclassifications
have been made to the prior years' consolidated financial statements and related notes to conform to the 2003 presentation. See accompanying notes to consolidated financial state-
mens.




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—(Continued)

Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 2002(mte2) 2001(0te2) 2003
{Restated) (Restated)
Cost of investments purchased:
FIXed Maturities «....overvvvierereneririeiecerenrserennese e ereseve s ¥(2,312,877) ¥(1,125,166) ¥(650,427) $(19,273,975)
EqQUIty SECUTIHIES ..ooviievireiinieeicrercere et (207,260) (185,518)  (188,261) (1,727,167)
Mortgage loans onreal estate .........coccvereererieeinncnercnneseseens (25,924) (14,981) (16,706) (216,033)
Investment real €State ....ooevvivveeeierecereeerr et (951) (1,972) (6,633) (7,925)
POlCY 10ANS ...vveeeieeeciecrie ettt s (28,696) (23,906) (23,649) (239,133)
Other long-term inVEStMENtS ......covvveerreeeverininneererererens (256,205) (107,670)  (107,957) (2,135,042)
Short-term investmentSs —NEt .......c.ccvcvvreveeereereeeeeee e 26,662 138,025 (318,604) 222,183
Securities and indebtedness of related parties ...........ccceevvvrnnen. 2,497 6,671 175 20,808
Additions to property and eqUIpmMeEnt ..........cocovervvveercrecneennns (13,208) (7,496) (7,503) (110,066)
Increase in cash received under securities lending
TTANSACLIONS .. ivvieveerereeeetereeniensrerereessesraeeseensrenresassessesrsaesenens 74,812 149,212 — 623,434
Cash and cash equivalents acquired in connection with
business COMBINAION .....ccvcvvriirerircririeiineee st sreesee e e e s e 153,868 — — 1,282,233
Net cash used in investing aCtiVIties .........cccoevevevcverecnennnn. (417,155) (19,518)  (279,129) (3,476,292)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Investment deposits funded by policyholders and yields
136153 (=3 1003 11 TR SO U U RU O TR URURUUO 499,110 290,046 355,677 4,159,250
Withdrawals of investment deposits by policyholders ............. (549,433) (394,661)  (432,258) (4,578,608)
Proceeds from issuance of debt .......cooevevveivieiiiiiiii, 41,896 — 60,000 349,133
Dividends to stockholders ........occooevieeiiiiiiiciiricecce, (16,382) (13,172) (13,173) (136,517)
Increase in treasury StOCK ......ccooeivvrrercennieirieiereee e (6,946) — — (57,883)
Net cash used in financing activities...........occcevevervcereinerenas (31,755) (117,787) (29,754) (264,625)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents..... 285 291 248 2375
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ..........cc.ccoveevccennnne. 17,676 209,871 4,530 147,300
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...........ccccoccceeeeee. 322,302 112431 107,901 2,685,850
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..., ¥ 339978 ¥ 322302 ¥ 112431 $ 2,833,150
Supplemental information of cash flows:
Cash paid during the year for:
INEEIESE o.erviireieeniererertete sttt saeess et eres s ssesesrere s s are st na s neens ¥ 2,508 ¥ 2,075 ¥ 1,142 $ 20,900
INCOIME LAXES ..ervvivve et ce st sne e ssasbe s st ere s ene e ¥ 73,196 ¥ 15466 ¥ 10354 $ 609,967
Noncash investing and financing activities (note 3):
Fair value of assets acquired ...........cooeeeeivevevinnicomesneeene, ¥ 2,108,703 — —_ $ 17,572,526
Liabilitiesassumed ........ ettt ettt et e et (1,606,945) —_ — (13,391,209)
Negative 200AWill....ccvviiiiiicee e (317,841) — — (2,648,675)
Fair value of shares issued for acquisition .......................... (337,785) — — (2,814,875)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired in connection with
business COMbINAION ....cc.cveviiviiiieeerecei i ¥ (153,868) — — $ (1,282,233)

Millea Holdings " consolidaied financial statements for the prior periods represent ihe financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. Certain reclassifications
have been made 1o the prior years' consolidated financial statements and relaicd notes 10 conform to the 2003 presentation. See accompuiying notes to consolidated financial state-
ments.
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Millea Hotdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Yen in millions) * (Dollars in thousands)
2003 2002 20012 2003
(Restated)
NELINCOIME .ottt se bbb eeneens ¥ 378,017 ¥ 160,717 ¥ 88,675 $ 3,150,142
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized appreciation of securities:
Unrealized holding 10SS€s .....ccccovveeincvcncncine e 216,114) (197,773) (122,012) (1,800,951)
Less:reclassification adjustments..........coeevevevrevecncecnennnnnee (110,328) (13,766) (38,998) (919,399)
(326,442) (211,539) (161,010) (2,720,350)
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........c.ccccceeveeenne. (10,181) 17,117 4,736 (84,841)
Less: reclassificationadjustments.........ccoeeevevcevnneninecnnnn, (524) — 1,909 (4,367)
(10,705) 17,117 6,645 (89,208)
Minimum pension liability adjustments .........c.cccoceeverccnne. (40,705) (29,973) 3,637 (339,207)
Other COMPrenensive 0SS «o...cevirrrereerrriereereseetrsie e eeneareeesennas (377,852) (224,395) (150,728) (3,148,765)
Comprehensive income (1088) ...c.couvrervivernrrecnnenienenere e ¥ 165 ¥ (63,678)  ¥(62,053) $ 1,377

Millea Holdings ' consolidated financial statements for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings. See accompanying notes

to consolidated financial statements.




Mittea Holdings. !nc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Presentation

Millea Holdings, Inc. (“Millea Holdings”), incorporated in Japan, is
a holding company engaged in property and casualty and life insur-
ance operations. Through its subsidiaries, Millea Holdings writes
marine, fire and casualty, automobile and allied lines of insurance
principally covering risks located in Japan and hull and cargo risks
for Japanese business and sells a variety of life insurance products
mainly in the Japanese market.

Millea Holdings was established on April 2, 2002 as a result of
the business combination of The Tokio Marine and Fire Insurance
Company, Limited (“Tokio Marine”) with The Nichido Fire and
Marine Insurance Company, Limited (“Nichido Fire™), by which
both Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire have become wholly owned
subsidiaries of Millea Holdings in a statutory share exchange under
Japanese law. Millea Holdings is a successor registrant of Tokio
Marine to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
See note 3 “Business Combination” for further detail.

The consolidated financial statements of Millea Holdings and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company”) are pre-
sented herein in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which
differ in certain respects from Japanese accounting principles
{(“Japanese GAAP”’). Millea Holdings’ consolidated financial state-
ments for the prior periods represent the financial results of Tokio
Marine, as predecessor to Millea Holdings.

The financial statements presented herein are expressed in yen
and, solely for the convenience of readers, have been translated into
United States dollars at the rate of ¥120=U.8.31, the approximate
exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo foreign exchange market as
of March 31, 2003. This translation should not be construed as a
representation that all the amounts shown could be converted into
U.S. dollars at the rate shown.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include all
significant majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercom-
pany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolida-
tion. Other subsidiaries and affiliates, which are not significant, are
accounted for primarily by the equity method. At March 31, 2003
and 2002, investments in related parties which were presented as
other assets amounted to ¥11,775 million ($98,125 thousand) and
¥14,272 million, respectively.
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(c) Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and
assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these finan-
cial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

(d) Investments—Other than Investments in Related Parties
Fixed maturities held to maturity, which the Company has the intent
and ability to hold to matunity, are stated at amortized cost. Declines
in fair value below amortized cost that are determined to be other
than temporary are charged to earnings.

Fixed maturities available for sale are stated at fair value. When
quoted market value is not available, quoted market value for simi-
lar securities is utilized instead. Declines in fair value below amor-
tized cost that are determined to be other than temporary are
charged to earnings.

Trading securities are held to meet short-term investment objec-
tives. These securities are recorded on a trade date basis and carried
at current market values. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized
in earnings.

Equity securities, which include common and nonredeemable
preferred stocks, are stated at their fair value based primarily on
quoted market prices. Stocks listed on Japanese or foreign stock
exchanges represent approximately 82% and 86% of the investment
in stocks at March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Declines in fair
value below cost that are determined to be other than temporary are
charged to earnings.

The cost of securities sold is determined on the weighted moving-
average basis.




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Mortgage loans on real estate and loans which are included in
other long-term investments are principally carried at the unpaid
balance of the principal amount. Commercial loans are identified as
impaired and placed on a cash basis when it is determined that the
payment of interest or principal is doubtful of collection except
when the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. Ac-
crued interest on impaired loans 1s reversed and charged against cur-
rent earnings, and interest is thereafter included in earnings only to
the extent actually received in cash. When there is doubt regarding
the ultimate collectibility of principal, all cash receipts are thereafter
applied to reduce the recorded investment in the loan. Impaired
commercial loans are written down to the extent that principal is
judged to be uncollectible. Impaired collateral-dependent loans
where repayment is expected to be provided solely by the underly-
ing collateral and there are no other available and reliable sources of
repayment are written down to the lower of cost or collateral value.
Cash-basis loans are returned to an accrual status when all contrac-
tual principal and interest amounts are reasonably assured of repay-
ment and there is a sustained period of repayment performance in
accordance with the contractual terms.

Policy loans are made to policyholders of long-term insurance
with refund at maturity, such as long-term comprehensive insurance
and long-term family personal traffic accident insurance, etc. The
maximum amount of loans is limited to 90% of return premiums on
the policies. Policy loans are carried at cost.

Gains and losses incurred on the sale or impairment of invest-
ments are included in realized gains and losses in the consolidated
statements of income. Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net
of taxes, in the value of securities available for sale is accounted for
as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

(e) Investment Real Estate, Property and Equipment
Investment real estate, property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation on buildings and furniture and fixtures.
Depreciation is computed principally by the declining-balance
method based on estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
of buildings and equipment range as follows:

38 to 50 years

41 years
24 years
22 years
SEECT 1o e 11 to 34 years
Building cqQUIPIMCAT oo 3 to 18 years
Furniture and fIXWUICS ..voveiviieii e 2o 15 years
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Maintenance and repairs are charged against income as incurred.
Improvements are capitalized to property and equipment.

The cost and accumulated depreciation with respect to assets re-
tired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the asset and re-
lated accumulated depreciation accounts. Any resulting profit or
loss is credited or charged to income.

(f) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash deposited in demand deposits at
banks.

(g) Derivatives

In June 1998, the U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No.133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” SFAS No.133 was subsequently amended by
SFAS No.138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of SFAS No.133.”

SFAS No.133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, and hedging activities. SFAS No.133, as
amended, requires that all derivatives be recorded on the consolidated
balance sheet at their respective fair values. The Company adopted
SFAS No.133, as amended, on April 1, 2001. All changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognized currently in eamings as “gains
(losses) on derivatives” from the year ended March 31, 2002. For the
year ended March 31, 2001, the realized gains and losses related to
denivative transactions were included in “net investment income” and
“realized gains (losses) on investments.”

In accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS No.133, the
Company recorded a net-of-tax cumulative-effect-type adjustment
of ¥85,465 million to net income on April 1, 2001. Of this adjust-
ment, ¥93,907 million was attributable to the increase in the fair
value of interest rate swaps used in the Company’s asset liability
management process, partly offset by a net decrease in fair value for
other outstanding derivative instruments on Apnl 1, 2001.
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Millea Holdings, inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

The Company occasionally purchases a financial instrument that
contains a derivative instrument that is embedded in the financial
instrument. The Company bifurcates an embedded derivative
where: (1) the economic characteristics of the embedded instrument
are not clearly and closely related to those of the remaining compo-
nents of the financial instrument; and (2) a separate instrument with
the same terms as the embedded instrument meets the definition of a
derivative under SFAS No.133. When bifurcated, the embedded
derivative is carried at fair value, and changes in its fair value are
included currently in earnings.

(h) Premium Revenues
Property and casualty insurance premiums are recognized as eamed
on a pro rata basis over the terms of the policies. Unearned premi-
ums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unex-
pired terms of coverage.

Life premiums for long-duration contracts are recognized when
due from policyholders. Life premiums for short-duration contracts
are recognized over the period to which the premiums relate on a
pro rata basis.

(i) Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of
insurance policies are capitalized and charged to expense in propor-
tion to premium revenue recognized. Deferred policy acquisition
costs are reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future
income and, if not recoverable, are charged to expense.

22

(i) Losses, Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The net liabilities stated for reported and estimated property and
casualty losses and claims and for related loss adjustment expenses
are based upon the accumulation of (1) case estimates for losses and
related loss adjustment expenses reported prior to the close of the
accounting period on the direct business written by the Company
and (2) estimates received from ceding reinsurers. The loss adjust-
ment expenses represent administrative expenses in connection
with settling or disposing of claims, which include out-of-pocket
expenses as well as allocated personnel cost. Provision has been
made for unreported losses and for loss adjustment expenses not
identified with specific claims based upon past experience. These
liabilities are adjusted regularly based on experience. The Company
believes that the liabilities for unpaid losses and loss adjustment ex-
penses at March 31, 2003 and 2002 are adequate to cover the ulti-
mate net cost of losses and claims incurred to those dates. However,
the liabilities are necessarily based on estimates and management
makes no representation that the ultimate liability may not exceed or
fall short of such estimates.

(k) Future Policy Benefits and Losses
Future policy benefits and losses include provisions for future
policy benefits for life contracts and for unpaid life policy claims.
The liabilities for future policy benefits are computed by a net level
premium method using estimated future investment yields, with-
drawals and recognized morbidity and mortality tables. For limited-
payment contracts , which provide insurance coverage over a contract
period that extends beyond the period in which premiums are col-
lected, gross premiums in excess of the net premium are deferred and
recognized in income in a constant relationship with insurance in
force or with the amount of expected future benefit payments.
Unpaid policy claimsrepresent the estimated liability for reported
and unreported losses on life policies on an undiscounted basis.
The Company believes that the estimated liabilities for future
policy benefits and for losses at March 31, 2003 and 2002 are ad-
equate to cover the life insurance liability. However, the ultimate
liability may vary from such estimates.

(1) Investment Deposits by Policyholders

The Company sells certain property and casualty and life insurance
products that do not subject the Company to significant risks arising
from policyholder mortality or morbidity. These contracts are re-
ferred to as investment contracts. For investment contracts, the Com-
pany records associated liabilities under investment deposits by
policyholders.

PR 4




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Specifically, the Company sells certain long-term property and
casualty insurance policies, such as long-term comprehensive insur-
ance and long-term family personal traffic accident insurance, etc.
which include a savings feature in addition to the insurance cover-
age provided under the policy. These policies are issued for periods
of two to sixty-four years.

The key terms of such policies (““deposit-type insurance”), which
include the contractual rates of interest, are fixed at the inception of
the policy and remain in effect during the policy period. At incep-
tion, policyholders can choose to pay premiums on the policy either
in a lump-sum or in annual, semi-annual or monthly installments.
The policy allows policyholders to later change the mode for pay-
ment with the Company’s approval. In addition, the policy allows
policyholders during the payment phase to change the allocation of
annuity payments he or she receives if certain conditions estab-
lished by the Company are met. In practice, these options are rarely
used by policyholders. Policyholders can terminate the contract be-
fore the maturity date with a payment of a pre-determined commis-
sion to the Company.

Premiums for insurance and savings portions of the contract are
allocated at inception. The premium for the insurance portion is cal-
culated the same way that the premium for a traditional indemnity
policy with no savings portion is calculated. The premium for the
savings portion represents the present value of the lump-sum or an-
nuity refund for a fixed period, discounted using the committed in-
terest rate and the “total loss termination” rate, which are both set at
the inception of the contracts. “Total loss termination” is an excep-
tional event that takes place when a full payout is made for the insur-
ance portion of the policy, and in this case, the contract terminates
without any maturity refund being paid to the policyholder. The
weighted average annual frequency of “total loss termination” is
approximately 0.05%.

In the case of a total loss, deposit premiums under the contract are
designed to be used for maturity refunds on the other policies for
which a total loss has not occurred. These deposit premiums are not
used to fund indemnity claims in the case of a total loss. All pay-
ments made to the policyholder in a total loss situation are funded by
using liabilities established for the insurance portion of the contract.
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The premium for the insurance portion is recognized as revenue
over the period of the contract, generally in proportion to the amount
of insurance protection provided. The premium for the savings por-
tion of the contract is accounted for as an increase to liabilities for
refunds captioned “investment deposits by policyholders.” At the end
of each fiscal year, the present value of future payments of maturity
refunds of contracts in force less the present value of the savings por-
tion of future premiums is accounted for as refund provisions.

Policy acquisition costs are not charged to the savings portion of
the contract. Costs associated with policy acquisition of deposit-
type policies are charged to the insurance portion and amortized
over the contractual period. The possibility of a premium defi-
ciency, relevant only to the insurance portion, is monitored through
combined loss and expense ratio. The Company did not recognize
any premium deficiency for such policies for the years ended March
31,2003, 2002 and 2001.

See note 12 for fair value information of investment deposits by
policyholders.

(m) Reinsurance

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner con-
sistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured business.
The Company evaluates and monitors the financial condition of its
reinsurers under voluntary reinsurance arrangements to minimize its
exposure to significant losses from reinsurers’ insolvencies.

(n) Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance

Japanese law provides that all automobiles are to be covered by
specified amounts of liability insurance for personal injury and that
insurance companies are to accept such coverage on a non-profit
basis. In compliance with this law, which came into effect on April
1, 1966, the Company has not reflected any profit or loss from un-
derwriting such compulsory automobile liability insurance in finan-
cial statements prepared for distribution to stockholders under the
Japanese Commercial Code. In the accompanying consolidated fi-
nancial statements, which are presented in accordance with U.S.
GAAP, gains or losses from underwriting compulsory automobile
liability insurance have been credited or charged to income.




Millea Holdings, inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(o) Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries located outside Japan are
translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses of the subsidiaries are
translated at weighted average exchange rates during the year.
Gains and losses resulting from translation of financial statements
are excluded from the consolidated statements of income and are
accumulated as foreign currency translation adjustments in stock-
holders’ equity.

Gains (losses) resulting from foreign currency transactions in the
amount of ¥(4,016) million ($(33,467) thousand) in 2003, ¥5,288
million in 2002 and ¥7,022 million in 2001 were credited or charged
to income.

(p) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Effective April 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144, “Ac-
counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
which supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment
“of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of.” As required by SFAS No. 144, long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows ex-
pected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to
be impaired, the amount of impairment to be recognized is the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair
value of the assets.

(q) Earnings per American Depositary Share

Basic eamings per American Depositary Share (“ADS”) are com-
puted by dividing net income available to common stockholders by
the wei ghted-average number of shares of common stock outstand-
ing for respective period and multiplying by five to account for the
common stock to ADS ratio of (a) five common shares to a thou-
sand ADS in fiscal 2003 and (b) five common shares to one ADS in
and before fiscal 2002.
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(r) New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.143, “Accounting for As-
set Retirement Obligations.” This statement addresses financial ac-
counting and reporting for obligations associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated retire-
ment costs. The Company will adopt SFAS No.143 in the year end-
ing March 31, 2004. The Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS No.143 to have a material effect on its financial position or
results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaran-
tees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”
(“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of certain types of
guarantees, a guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value
of an obligation assumed under a guaranty. FIN 45 also requires
additional disclosures by a guarantor in its financial statements
about the obligations associated with guarantees issued. The recog-
nition provisions of FIN 45 are effective for any guarantees issued
or modified after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 did
not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements
for the periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company
adopted the disclosure requirements effective March 31, 2003. See
note 14 for further information.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Con-
solidation of Variable Interest Entities”, (“FIN 46”). The objective
of FIN 46 is to improve financial reporting by companies involved
with variable interest entities. This new model for consolidation ap-
plies to an entity which either (1) the powers or rights of the equity
holders do not give them sufficient decision making powers or (2)
the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entity’s
activities without receiving additional subordinated financial sup-
port from other parties. FIN 46 requires a variable interest entity to
be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a major-
ity of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities or
entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both.
FIN 46 1s immediately effective for variable interest entities created
after January 31, 2003, and is effective for variable interest entities
acquired before February 1, 2003 in the first fiscal year beginning
after June 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in
all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of
when the variable interest entity was established. See note 4 for fur-
ther information.

V.Y -]




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

2. RESTATEMENTS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

Fiscal Year 2003 Restatements and Reclassifications

The Company has made certain adjustments to its 2002 and 2001
consolidated financial statements as contained herein to reflect re-
finements of its actuarial methodologies effected in connection with
information system improvements and the consolidation of Nichido
Fire as of April 2, 2002. Such restatement adjustments had no net
effect on previously reported net income for the years ended March
31,2002 and 2001. The restatements however resulted in changes to
the intersegment ailocation of income and retained eamings; in-
creasing the property and casualty segment retained eamings by
¥12,479 million and decreasing life segment retained eamings by a
corresponding amount as of March 31, 2002.

The following table shows the effects of the restatements and re-
classifications on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
as of March 31, 2002, and for each of the years in the two-year
period ended March 31, 2002.

{¥en in millions)

2002 2001
As rceported in As reported in
March 2002 As restated and March 2002 Ag restated and
annual report ified annual report reclassified
Statements of income:
Life premiums .....coerevereeen ¥ 205,693 ¥ 209,208 ¥ 150,543 ¥ 162,905
Net investment income 48,259 104,681 69,183 127,852
Total operating income ........ 1,588,575 1,648,512 1,586,607 1,657,638
Policy benefits and losscs
or life e 172,586 175,016 125,947 137,469
Income credited to
investment deposits
by policyholders .......o...ce... — 57,507 — 59,509
Total operating costs and
CXPENISCS wovenvecririrereesescrienar 1,479,907 1,539,844 1,453,573 1,524,604
Balance sheet:
Reinsurance recoverablc on
JOSSES wevvveceerree e 174,193 332,687
Prepaid reinsurance
PIEMIUMS oo 223,090 195,814
Deferred policy acquisition
COSES veavinrrerrnrierirserenremsneneens 330,081 301,723
Total asSetS .vovviavriiricenns 8.456,317 8,559,177
Liabilitics for losses, claims
and loss adjustment
CXPENSES 1ovcnrecrcraeercr s 675,764 875,463
Uncamed premiums ............ 1,280,058 1,177,512
Future policy benefits and
1OSSCS <vovvivrerircvireeieriir e 494269 462,597
Total policy liabilities and
accruals i 2,450,091 2,515,572
Investment deposits
by policyholders ..o, 2,054,705 2,131,834
Other liabilities ......ccovevveinnee 187,550 147,800
Total liabilities .....cocucrennns 5,946,623 6,049,483
Total liabilities and
sieckholders’ equity ... 8,456,317 8,559.177
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The actuarial refinements effected the calculations of: future
policy benefits; unearned premiums; life and non-life deferred ac-
quisition costs; the liability for losses, claims and loss adjustment
expenses; and, associated reinsurance and deferred tax balances.

These adjustments primarily consisted of (a) a decrease in prop-
erty and casualty net unearned premiums by ¥39,412 million and a
proportional decrease in deferred policy acquisition costs by
¥18,458 million and (b) an increase in the labilities for life insur-
ance contracts by ¥9,599 million and a decrease in deferred policy
acquisition costs by ¥9,900 million at March 31, 2002. Property
and casualty uneamed premiums were adjusted with the amounts as
prorated at more frequent intervals to absorb potential time lag in
the current reporting cycle of policies written through agents. Li-
abilities for life insurance contracts were adjusted with the amounts
estimated by modified factors incorporating the recent market
trends and management’s prospect of Japanese economic climate.
In conjunction with this adjustment, conforming changes were
made to life deferred policy acquisition costs by consistent applica-
tion of similar assumptions.

These adjustments also included a change in the presentation of
the effect of ceded reinsurance mainly on compulsory automobile
liability insurance (“CALI”) to gross up policy liabilities and rein-
surance recoverable by ¥158,494 million at March 31, 2002. Fol-
lowing the abolition of the CALI government reinsurance scheme
effective April 1, 2002, the Company has changed the presentation
of liabilities for losses on CALI and recoveries from reinsurance to
present them on the gross basis of the effect of ceded reinsurance
through the current pool arrangement. The prior year-end balances
of these accounts were revised to present them in gross amounts
comparable to fiscal 2003.

Presentation in the consolidated statements of income of invest-
ment income was changed to show it on the gross basis of income
credited to investment deposits for policyholders for deposit-type
insurance policies and report related charges under a separate ex-
pense item captioned “income credited to investment deposits by
policyholders.” This change resulted in the reclassifications to in-
crease investment income for the years ended March 31, 2002 and
2001 by ¥56,422 million and ¥58,669 million, respectively, with
corresponding increases in operating costs and expenses for the re-
spective years.

Certain other reclassifications have also been made to the prior
years’ consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2003 pre-
sentation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Fiscal Year 2002 Restatements

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002, the Company
changed its accounting policy with respect to the recognition of
“other than temporary” declines in values of marketable equity se-
curities. The above noted change in accounting policy necessitated
the restatement of the Company’s previously reported consolidated
financial statements as contained in its annual report as of March 31,
2001 and for each of the years in the three-year period then ended.
Such restatements were effectuated in connection with the
Company’s March 2002 financial reporting by restating the com-
parative financial statement information contained therein and la-
beling such information “as restated.”

The following table shows the effects of the restatements on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and related notes for
the year ended March 31, 2001. All adjustments relate solely to the
Company’s property and casualty segment.

{Yen in millions,
except per share amount)
2001
As resiated in
March 2002
annual report

As reported in
March 2001
annua) report

Retained camnings:

at beginning of YCar ... ecemrnecennenee ¥1,667,928 ¥1,630,265

atend of Year ....ccovveceniinciennn 1,748,272 1,705,767
Unrealized appreciation of securities 722,674 765,179
Realized gains on inVEStMENtS ..........covernrmriermerecresens 63,708 56,142
Total operating inCome.........ceveern. 1,594,173 1,586,607
Incomc before income tax expense .. 140,600 133,034
[NCOME tAX EXPENSE «.evcurrercrmmrieeuietinscrersenseneesesensenees 47,083 44359
NEEINCOMIC 1.vvviveeceiiriece et en et re s re s snsees 93,517 88,675
Basic and diluted net income per ADS .. 302 286
Gross unrealized gains on marketable cquity

SCCUTIES w.veoveveceiereie e tee s e eve st ms s e eenraes 1,695,874 1,633,695
Gross unrealized losses on marketable cquity
SCOUTTHICS 1uveireeee v e ereereeere et eteeseeeseeebeabestesmnsnnssnes 145,096 16,504

Previously, the Company had maintained the cost of equity secu-
rities in a manner to reinstate historical losses arising from the appli-
cation of the lower of cost or market method recognized in the
financial statements prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP
and make certain other adjustments to conform with U.S. GAAP.
Under this approach, the cost of equity securities was available on a
portfolio basis, which necessitated approximation to determine the
amount of other than temporary declines in fair value below cost of
equity securities and to present gross unrealized gains and losses on
equity securities at each year-end. In fact, the Company presented
gross unrealized gain amounts as measured under Japanese GAAP,
and gross unrealized losses were calculated as the difference be-
tween the gross unrealized gains and the net unrealized gains.

26

Currently, the Company maintains the cost of equity securities
for each security and recognizes impairment for other than tempo-
rary declines based on the qualitative and quantitative impairment
tests applied to individual securities. The restatements were made
based on the results of similar tests applied to the year ended March
31, 2001 or before.

As aresult, cumulative effect on income before tax of the restate-
ments as of March 31, 2001 was ¥66,413 million and their income
staternent effect before tax for the year ended March 31, 2001 was ¥
7,566 million to recognize additional impairment charges.

Based on the newly maintained costs for each of marketable eg-
uity securities, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on
marketable equity securities at March 31, 2001 were also restated
from ¥1,695,874 million and ¥145,096 million, respectively, re-
flecting results under Japanese GAAP, to ¥1,633,695 million and
¥16,504 million, respectively.

3. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On April 2, 2002, Tokio Marine completed its business combina-
tion with Nichido Fire by way of the creation of a holding company,
Millea Holdings, by which each of the companies has become a
wholly owned subsidiary of Millea Holdings in a statutory share
exchange under Japanese law.

Nichido Fire, incorporated in Japan, is a property and casualty
insurer which writes marine, fire and casualty, automobile and al-
lied lines of insurance principally covering risks located in Japan
and hull and cargo risks for Japanese business. Under the holding
company structure, Tokio Marine and Nichido Fire have been inte-
grating their respective products, information technology systems,
property and casualty claims investigation functions and sales of-
fice functions to realize the potential synergies available from inte-
gration of their property and casualty insurance businesses.

The combination was accounted for by the purchase method ina
manner that Tokio Marine had acquired Nichido Fire. The results of
operations of Nichido Fire as well as those of Tokio Marine have
been included in the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2003.
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In connection with the share exchange, holders of Tokio Marine
shares received 1.00 share of Millea Holdings common stock for
each 1,000 shares of Tokio Marine common stock they held, and
holders of Nichido Fire shares received 0.69 of one share of Millea
Holdings common stock for each 1,000 shares of Nichido Fire com-
mon stock they held. Upon the share exchange, Millea Holdings
issued 307,356.26 common stock shares, representing approxi-
mately 17% of the voting interests of the holding company, to the
stockholders of Nichido Fire.

The value of common stock issued to the stockholders of Nichido
Fire was ¥337,785 million, based on the share exchange ratio deter-
mined by the respective share values of Tokio Marine and Nichido
Fire on September 28, 2001.

The allocation of the purchase price is summarized as follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)

INVESHMENLS ....oveeverrveecieereen e ¥1,661,867 $13,848,892
Other assets ...... 600,704 5,005,867
Assets acquired ............... 2,262,571 18,854,759
Policy liabilities and accruals ......... 709,655 5,913,792
Investment deposits by policyholders ....... 635,015 5,291,792
Other liabilities .......c.oovreervoreriicniiinane 262,275 2,185,625
Liabilities assumed ......ccoervciinneininenns 1,606,945 13,391,209
Net assets acquired .........ooccevveerisnenns 655,626 5,463,550
Total purchase price ........ccerevermrerereinenns 337,785 2,814,875
Negative goodwill ...coooevivrevcncnnne ¥ 317,841 $ 2,648,675

Unallocated negative goodwill arising from the combination was
recognized as extraordinary gain in the results of operations of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2003 as follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)

Income before extraordinary items and

cumulative cffect of accounting changes . ¥129,694 $1,080,784

Extraordinary items

—unallocated negative goodwill .. 248,323 2,069,358
NCLINCOME overreierririscerisnereeromcreenens ¥378,017 $3,150,142

The following sets forth results of operations for the year ended
March 31, 2002 on a pro forma basis combining those of Nichido
Fire. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of
income gives effect to the combination as if it had occurred at begin-
ning of the year ended March 31, 2002. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of income does not reflect the trans-
action costs that have been incurred, nor does it reflect any realized
or anticipated synergies or cost savings. Also, it does not reflect
unallocated negative goodwill.
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(Yen in millions,

excepl pet share amount)
2002
{Unaudited)
Pro forma statement of income data:
Total Operating iNCOME .......ocvererrrrrreeirereeerserrenresense ¥2,013,935
Income before cumulative effect of accounting
changes 54,471
Net income 139,936
Earning per ADS—Basic and Diluted:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting
€hanges ..o 147
NELINCOME 1ot 377
4. INVESTMENTS

The following summarizes the Company’s investments in fixed
maturities held to maturity at March 31, 2003 and 2002:

(Yen in millions)

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized  unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
2003:
Bonds and notes:
Other government and
government agencies
and authorities ................... ¥866,971 ¥144512¥ — ¥1,011,483
Other corporate bonds ........ 16,365 884 — 17,249
Total fixed maturities
held to maturity .......... _¥883.336 ¥145396¥ — ¥1,028,732
2002:
Bonds and notes:
Other government and
govemnment agencies
and authorities ... ¥453,453 ¥ 9,421 ¥(3,904) ¥ 458,970
Other corporate bonds ........ 16,735 701 (DO 17,435
Total fixed maturities
held to maturity ............ ¥470,188 ¥ 10,122 ¥(3,905) ¥ 476,405
(Dolars in thousands)
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized  unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
2003:
Bonds and notes:
Other government and
govermnment agencies
and authorities ......c...cco.e. $7,224,758 $1,204,267 $— $8,429,025
Other corporate bonds ........ 136,375 7367 — 143,742
Total fixed maturities
held to maturity ............. $7,361,133 $1,211634 $— §8,572,767
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The following summarizes the Company’s investments in fixed

maturities available for sale at March 31, 2003 and 2002:

(Yen in millions)

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized  unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
2003:
Bonds and notes:
U.S. government and
govemment agencies
and authorities ............c.c.... ¥ 140,150 ¥ 6,635 ¥(1,280) ¥ 145,505
U.S. states, municipalitics
and political subdivisions .. 44 20 — 64
Other govemment and
government agencics and
authOTities .vvvvveroreeinnens 1,935,175 142,252 (4,124) 2,073,303
Other municipalities and
political subdivisions ......... 244,826 19,601  (109) 264,318
Public utilities .......ccoeeennee 88,322 4,649 ) 92,966
Convertibles and bonds
with warrants attached ....... 70,622 6,724 (26) 77,320
Other corporate bonds ........ 746,421 22,290 (563) 768,148
Total fixed maturities
available for sale........... ¥3,225,560 ¥202,171 ¥(6,107) ¥3,421,624
2002:
Bonds and notes:
U.S. government and
government agencics
and authorities .........ccoe... ¥ 43313 ¥ 7,593 ¥ (5) ¥ 50,901
U.S. states, municipalities
and political subdivisions .. 109 65 — 174
Other government and
government agencies and
AUhOMItIES ..ovvvecerce e 903,702 16,657  (160) 920,199
Other municipalitics and
political subdivisions ......... 299,885 23979 (32) 323,832
Public utilities .....cccc.cvunnnnn. 34,192 2,808 — 37,000
Convertibles and bonds
with warrants attached ....... 102,074 9,420 — 111,494
Other corporate bonds ........ 543,645 15,056 (232) 558,469
Total fixed maturitics
available forsale............ ¥1,926,920  ¥75,578 ¥(429) ¥2,002,069
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(Dollars in thousands)

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gaing losses value

2003:
Bonds and notes:

U.S. government and
government agencies and
authorities .....o.coovcreeceniencnee
U.S. states, municipalities
and political subdivisions ..
Other government and
government agencies and
authorities ......ocecererimrennnn
Other municipalities and
political subdivisions
Public utilities .......ccooiivrnn
Convertibles and bonds
with warrants attached .......
Other corporate bonds ........

Total fixed maturitics
available for sale ............

$ 1,167,9178 55,292 $(10,667) $ 1,212,542

367 166 — 533
16,126,458 1,185,434 (34,367) 17,277,525
2,040,217 163,342 (909) 2,202,650
736,017 38,742 (42) 774,717
588,517 56,033 (217) 644,333
6,220,175 185,750  (4,692) 6,401,233

$26,879,668 $1,684,759 $(50,894) $28,513,533

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities by contrac-
tual maturity at March 31, 2003 are as follows. Actual maturities
will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have

the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepay-

ment penalties.

._(Yen in millions)

{Doliars in thousands)

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
cost vajue cost value
Fixed maturities held to
maturity:
Ducinoneyearorless.... ¥ 2,005 ¥ 2,020 § 16708 $ 16,833
Due after one year
through five years ........... 6,361 6,528 53,009 54,400
Duc after five years
through ten years ............ 57,532 59,859 479,433 498,825
Due after ten years ......... _ 817,438 960,325 6,811,983 8,002,709

¥883,336 ¥1,028,732 $7,361,133  $8,572,767

(Yen in miltions)

(Doltars in thousands)

Amontized

cost

Fair Amortized Fair
value cost value

Fixed maturities available
for sale:
Due in one year or less ...
Duc after one year

¥ 515921 ¥ 519,646 $ 4,299,342 $ 4,330,383

through five years ........... 1,276,382 1,303,718 10,636,518 10,864,316
Duc after five years
through ten years ............ 661,183 698,003 5,509,858 5,816,692
Duc after ten years .......... 767,209 895,421 6,393,408 7,461,842
With no contractual
MATULILY covcveeerererneirenes 4,865 4,836 40,542 40,300

¥3,225,560 ¥3,421,624 $26.,879,668 $28,513,533
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Proceeds from sales of investments in fixed maturities prior to
their scheduled maturity dates were ¥536,061 million ($4,467,175
thousand), ¥335,280 million and ¥296,843 million for the years
ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Gross gains of
¥9,849 million (882,075 thousand) and gross losses of ¥5,046 mil-
lion ($42,050 thousand) in 2003, gross gains of ¥12,247 million and
gross losses of ¥3,181 million in 2002 and gross gains of ¥20,656
million and gross losses of ¥11,076 million in 2001 were realized on
those sales.

Bonds carried at ¥53,138 million ($442,817 thousand) at March
31, 2003 and ¥38,634 million at March 31, 2002 were pledged as
collateral primarily to reinsurance companies.

Bondscarriedat¥172,513 million($1,437,608 thousand) atMarch
31, 2003 and ¥146,447 million at March 31, 2002 were used as collat-
eral for the Bank of Japan’s instant gross settlement system for trans-
actions of checking accounts and Japanese government bonds.

Bonds carried at ¥245,541 million (32,046,175 thousand) at
March 31, 2003 and ¥147,839 million at March 31, 2002 were
loaned to financial institutions under securities lending transactions.

Bonds carried at ¥109,102 million ($909,183 thousand) at March
31, 2003 and ¥94,313 million at March 31, 2002 were deposited
primarily with United States and other foreign government authori-
ties as required by law.

Bonds carried at ¥15,726 million ($131,050 thousand) at March
31, 2003 were pledged as collateral for letters of credit.

Bonds carried at ¥1,874 million ($15,617 thousand) at March 31,
2003 and ¥1,387 million at March 31, 2002 were pledged as collat-
eral for Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Ja-
pan, a corporation established to protect policyholders from losses
in case of bankruptcies of life insurance companies.

With respect to marketable equity securities, gross unrealized
gains were ¥301,338 million ($6,677,816 thousand) and gross unre-
alized losses were ¥109,929 million ($916,075 thousand) at March
31, 2003, and gross unrealized gains were ¥1,343,337 million and
gross unrealized losses were ¥16,308 million at March 31, 2002.

Proceeds from sales of investments in equity securities were
¥413,591 million ($3,446,592 thousand), ¥94,796 million and
¥125,080 million for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Gross gains of ¥110,562 million ($921,350
thousand) and gross losses of ¥29,918 million ($249,317 thousand)
in 2003, gross gains of ¥39,329 million and gross losses of ¥2,269
million in 2002, and gross gains of ¥61,630 million and gross losses
of ¥13,566 million in 2001 were realized on those sales.
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Equity securities carried at ¥44,000 million ($366,667 thousand)
at March 31, 2003, and ¥50,498 million at March 31, 2002 were
deposited with securities brokers primarily as a collateral for futures
transactions entered into by the Company.

Equity securities carried at ¥37,127 million (§309,392 thousand)
at March 31, 2003 and ¥41,565 million at March 31, 2002 were
loaned to financial institutions under securities lending transactions.

Equity securities carried at ¥6,790 million ($56,583 thousand) at
March 31, 2003 and ¥5,824 million at March 31, 2002 were depos-
ited with United States government authorities as required by law.

In January 2003, the FASB released FIN No.46, which clarifies
when an enterprise should consolidate an entity that meet the defini-
tion of a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”) if that enterprise has a
variable interest that will absorb a majority of the VIE’s expected
losses, receive a majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns, or
both. A VIE is a entity in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have suf-
ficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support from other parties, and
may include many types of special purpose entities. The Company
provides equity investments in VIEs that are designed to be bank-
ruptcy remote from the Company as an alternative to real estate in-
vestment. Investments in such VIEs amounted to ¥42,711 million
($355,925 thousand) at March 31, 2003. The Company’s risk expo-
sure is limited to the amount of these investments.

Mortgage loans on real estate are primarily mortgage loans on
commercial buildings.

Accumulated depreciation of investment real estate amounted to
¥79,538 million ($662,817 thousand) and ¥83,155 million at March
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Other long-term investments include:

{Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2003
Mortgage loans on vessels and
facilities ..o ¥ 22,125 ¥ 25061  § 184,375
Collateral and bank-guaranteed
foans .....cccveenne. : 22,096 29,800 184,133
Unsccured loans . 440,997 404,419 3,674,976
MONCY tTUSE veverciees e seenien s 73,786 76,386 614,883
¥559,004 ¥535,666 _ $4,658,367

Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities are generally joint loans
in which other financial institutions participate. The Company par-
ticipates in the hull insurance on these vessels.
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Collateral loans are made to commercial enterprises and are se-
cured principally by listed stocks and/or bonds of Japanese corpora-
tions. Certain of these loans are made jointly with other insurance
companies.

Bank-guaranteed loans are made to commercial enterprises.

Unsecured loans within authorized limits are made on a selective
basis to corporate borrowers. These loans are generally term loans,
which had contractual maturities ranging from 2003 through 2038 at
March 31, 2003. Interest rates of these loans varied from 0.04% to
12.00% at March 31, 2003, and 0.10% to 12.00% at March 31, 2002.

Money trustis a type of portfolio investment in which trustbanks are
entrusted with investments in securities or other financial instruments.

Short-term investments consist primarily of call loans and other
investments maturing within one year. Short-term investments
amounting to ¥1,243 million ($10,358 thousand) at March 31, 2003
and ¥220 million at March 31, 2002 were deposited with the United
States government authorities and other foreign government au-
thorities as requited by law.

Details of net investment income were as follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dotlars in thousands)
2003 2002 2001 2003
Fixed maturities ........ccoevvene ¥ 65,762 ¥ 51913 ¥ 50,541 §$ 548,018
Equity securities ........c.c.cc..... 32,785 29,409 30,002 273,208
Mortgage loans on real estate 3,715 4,219 4,569 30,958
Investment real estate ........... 12,817 12,907 14,050 106,808
Policy 10an5 ..ooerereirineennens 1,156 830 757 9,633
Other long-term investments 11,475 11,802 15,421 95,625
Short-term investments ........ 5,677 4,113 4,416 47,308
Oher ..o 1,715 7,987 27,967 14,292
Gross investmentincome . 135,102 123,180 147,723 1,125,850
Less investment expenses ..... 26,791 18,499 19,871 223,258
Net investment income ...... ¥108,311 ¥104,681 ¥127852 § 902,592

Effective for the year ended March 31, 2002, the Company
changed the presentation of reporting gains and losses on derivative
transactions to “‘gains (losses) on derivatives” as described in note
1(g). The above table includes net gains on derivative transactions in
the amount of ¥20,696 million for the year ended March 31, 2001.

At March 31, 2003 and 2002, accrued investment income, in-
cluded in other assets, amounted to ¥22,030 million ($183,583
thousand) and ¥15,365 million, respectively.
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Net realized and change in unrealized gains or losses on fixed
maturities, equity securities and other investments for the years
ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

(Yen in millions)

Fixed Equity Other Net gaing
it sceurities investments Josses)
2003:
Realized ..o ¥ 11,553 ¥ (37,957) ¥(3,471) ¥ (29,875)

Change in unrealized ..... 120,915  (635,620)

¥132.468 ¥(673,577)

(1,026) (515,731)
¥(4,497) ¥(545,606)

2002:

¥ 8244 ¥ (11,900)

. (38293) (290,162)
¥(30,049) ¥(302,062)

¥2636 ¥ (1,020)
(3,764)  (332,219)
¥(1,128) ¥(333,239)

2001 (Restated):

Realized ......occovvvvverireeicnrcrenne ¥ 9,400 ¥ 53,578 ¥(6,836) ¥ 56,142
Change in unrealized . . 75,634  (351,656) 4,438  (271,584)
Total voeeeeerereciieeseeeenns ¥ 85,034 ¥(298,078) ¥(2,398) ¥(215,442)

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed Equity Other Net gains
maturities securities investments (losses)
2003:

Realized ..oooveeiereriirccvienn $ 96275 $ (316,308)$(28,925) $ (248,958)
Change in unrealized . . 1,007,625 (5,296,833) (8,550) (4,297,758)
] Y OO $1,103,900 $(5,613,141) $(37,475) $(4,546,716)

Trading losses for the year ended March 31, 2003 that relate to
trading securities still held at March 31, 2003 amounted to ¥140
million ($1,167 thousand).

The Company recognized impairment losses on certain of its in-
vestment real estate in the amount of ¥5,034 million ($41,950 thou-
sand) in the year ended March 31, 2003. Considering the decline of
Japanese real estate market, tests for impainnent were performed as
of March 31, 2003 for any significant assets where the Company
observed possible decline in the fair value below the carrying
amount of the asset. For those assets, the Company recognized im-
pairment losses for the amount by which the carrying amount ex-
ceeded the fair value estimated primarily based on recent
transactions involving sales of similar assets and charged them to
realized gains (losses) on other investments for the year ended
March 31, 2003 in the property and casualty segment.
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The Company changed the presentation of reporting gains and
losses on derivative transactions in the year ended March 31,2002 and
the above table includes gains and losses on derivative transactions in
the amount of ¥9,901 million for the year ended March 31, 2001.

On April 1, 2000, the Company transferred certain of its fixed
maturities available for sale to held to maturity category. This trans-
fer was based on the Company’s review of investment policies to
match the duration of securities portfolio with certain life insurance
liabilities with relatively long duration. The related unrealized gains
on these securities at the time of transfer in the amount of ¥9,088
million are being amortized from accumulated other comprehen-
sive income into investment income over the remaining terms of the
securities. Unamortized amounts of those unrealized gains were
¥7,719 million ($64,325 thousand) and ¥8,175 million at March 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

Securities available for sale are carried in the consolidated finan-
cial statements at fair value. Changes in unrealized gains and losses,
net of taxes, on securities available for sale shown above are in-
cluded in other comprehensive income.

The Company’s investments in Toyota Motor Corporation and
its affiliates amounting to ¥290,199 million ($2,418,325 thousand)
and ¥284,345 million at March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
exceeded 10% of stockholders’ equity.

The recorded investments in impaired loans and related specific
valuation allowances, which were established for all impaired
loans, at March 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(Yen in millions)
Total

(Dollars in thousands)
Total

Valuation Valuation

recorded allowances recorded allowances
investment -specific investment -specific
2003:
Mortgage loans on real
CSTALE covvrrarenrisireereeeecae ¥31,483  ¥12,862 $262,358 $107,183
Collateral and bank-
guaranteed loans.............. 11,360 4,865 94,667 40,542
Unsccurcd loans .............. 23,153 12,378 192,942 103,150
¥65,996  ¥30,105 $549,967 $250,875
2002:
Mortgage loans on real
CSHALE .overivrerieceiinare e ¥16,726 ¥ 8,264
Unsccured loans .............. 30,564 15,806
¥47,290  ¥24,070

In addition, based on the Company’s past experience that it is
probable that a certain percentage of its loans not covered by spe-
cific valuation allowances are impaired at the balance sheet date
even in the absence of specific loss information, the Company es-
tablished unallocated valuation allowances in order to incorporate
loss contingencies underlying the loan portfolio comprehensively.
In determining the amount of required allowances, the Company
classifies loans into three categories based on their current credit
quality, and applies historical loan loss ratios for these respective
categories. The outstanding unallocated valuation allowances were
¥6,730 million ($56,083 thousand) and ¥8,675 million at March 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The activity in valuation allowances for the years ended March
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

{Yen in millions) {Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2003
Balance at beginning of
YEAT ceivrivrireneieaeteneseetesasesinens ¥32,745 ¥38,919 ¥38,219 $272,875
Adjustment in connection
with the acquisition ............. 9,129 —_ —_ 76,075
Charges to income ... 1,091 (502) 1,731 9,091
Principal charge-offs ............ (6,130)  (5,672)  (1,031) (51,083)
Balance at end of year .......... ¥36,835 ¥32,745 ¥38919 $306,958

During the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the aver-
age recorded investment in impaired loans amounted to ¥63,674
million ($530,617 thousand), ¥55,512 million and ¥67,880 million,
respectively, and interest income recognized and received in cash
on those loans amounted to ¥1,309 million ($10,908 thousand),
¥747 million and ¥1,361 million, respectively. At March 31, 2003
and 2002, the carrying amount of loans that were non-income pro-
ducing during the preceding twelve months amounted to ¥12,148
million ($101,233 thousand) and ¥6,527 million, respectively.

The Company manages its investments to limit credit risks by
diversifying its portfolio among various investment types and in-
dustry sectors. The Company monitors creditworthiness of
counterparties to all financial instruments by using controls that in-
clude credit approvals, limits and other monitory procedures. Col-
lateral often includes pledges of assets, such as stocks and other
assets and guarantees,
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5. REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, the Company cedes risks to other
insurers and reinsurers. Reinsurance enables the Company to re-
duce its exposure to large Josses in all aspects of its insurance busi-
ness, although it does not relieve the Company of its obligations as
direct insurer of the risks reinsured.

Prepaid reinsurance premiums represent the portion of premiums
ceded to reinsurers applicable to the unexpired terms of the reinsurance
contracts in force. Reinsurance recoverable on losses represents esti-
mates of amounts that will be recovered from reinsurers on reported
and unreported losses and claims and loss adjustment expenses.

The Company is exposed to contingent liability with respect to re-
insurance which would become an actual liability to the extent that
any reinsurer failed to meet its obligations to the Company. Because
of the large amount of funds held by the Company under reinsurance
treaties and the Company’s favorable historical results with the
reinsurers involved, no material amounts were considered uncollect-
ible and no matena! provisions were made for this contingency.

The effect of ceded reinsurance on the consolidated statements of
income for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is as
follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2003
Property and casualty:
Premiums written:
[} (701 ST ¥1,987,463 ¥1,509,615 ¥1,468,361 $16,562,191
Assumed ......ccoovernnnee 325,347 138,362 94,117 2,711,225
Ceded ..o (414,253)  (266,494) (238,571) (3,452,108)
Net premiums
L7 < 111C) RO ¥1,898,557 ¥1,381,483 ¥1,323,907 $15,821,308

Premiums eamncd:

DITECt oo ¥1,952,534 ¥1,436,884 ¥1,449,523 $16,271,117
Assummed ..oooooooveroeeon. 190,135 128,786 92,236 1,584,458
Ceded oo (381,701)  (222,708) (231,020) (3,180,842)

¥1,760,968 ¥1,342,962 ¥1,310,739 $14,674,733

Losses, claims incurrcd:

Direct e ¥1,064,457 ¥ 838,246 ¥ 889,295 $ 8,870,475
Assumed .. 174,561 110,858 92,823 1,454,675
Ceded .o, (285,337)  (212,339) (202,430) (2,377,808)
Losses, claims
incurred ......ccooveenn. ¥ 053,681 ¥ 736,765 ¥ 779,688 $ 7,947,342
Life:
Premiums carned:
Direct ..., . ¥ 263361 ¥ 209,469 ¥ 163,016 $ 2,194,675
Assumed .. 0 0 1 0
Ceded v (875) 261 (112) (7,292)

¥ 262,486 ¥ 209,208 ¥ 162,905 $ 2,187,383
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6. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

The following sets forth the policy acquisition costs deferred for am-
ortization against future income and the related amortization charged
to income for property and casualty and life insurance operations:

(Yen in millions) {Dollary in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2003
(Restated) (Restated)
Property and casualty:
Deferred at beginning
(53771 SN ¥221,914 ¥214,019 ¥211,267 $1,849,283
Adjustment in connection
with the acquisition ......... 99,663 — — 830,525
Incurred during year:
Commissions and
brokerage .......couoeeeennes 287,460 227,168 215447 2,395,501
Salaries and other
compensation ............. 147,207 115911 116,310 1,226,725
Other underwriting
COSLS worveraeramreicrrcrennenen 112,099 83,795 84,589 934,158
546,766 426,874 416,346 4,556,384
868,343 640,893 627,613 7,236,192
Foreign currency
translation adjustments .... (331 — — (2,758)
Deferred at end of year ..... 323,865 221,914 214,019 2,698,875
Policy acquisition costs .... 544,147 418979 413,594 4,534,559
Life:
Deferred at beginning
Of YCAT v 79,809 63,366 43,630 665,075
Incurred during year ......... 45,717 34,476 28,693 380,975
125,526 97,842 72,323 1,046,050
Deferred at end of year ..... 98,615 79,809 63,366 821,792
Policy acquisition costs .... 26,911 18,033 8,957 224,258
Total policy
acquisition costs ...... ¥571,058 ¥437,012  ¥422,551 $4,758,817
7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of property and equipment is as follows:
(Yen in mitlions) (Dotlars in th ds)
2003 2002 2003
Land ..o ¥ 88,778 ¥ 93954 § 739817
Buildings ..coooveriieincsceee 225,200 228,457 1,876,666
Fumniture and cquipment 67,372 40,755 561,433
Construction in progress..... 6,404 24 53,367
Total at cost ...c.crevccrennns 387,754 363,190 3,231,283
Less accumulated depreciation ......... 183,676 162,768 1,530,633
Net property and equipment ......... ¥204,078 ¥200,422  $1,700,650

[ Y. 1
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8. LIABILITY FOR UNPAID LOSSES AND CLAIMS AND
LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The table below 1s a reconciliation of beginning and ending prop-
erty and casualty insurance balances for unpaid losses and claims
and loss adjustment expenses for the years ended March 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001:

(Yen in miliions) (Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2003
{Restated) (Restated)
Balance at beginning
Of YEAT . ¥ 875,463 ¥854,952 ¥821,088 $7,295,525
Less reinsurance
recoverables ..o 247,861 255,696 257,221 2,065,508
Net balance at beginning
Of YEAT .o s 627,602 599256 563,867 5,230,017
Adjustment in connection
with the acquisition ............. 141,940 — — 1,182,833
Incurred related to:
Current year ......oovevciennne 1,029,655 802,061 829,097 8,580,459
PrioT YEars .....cccoovvvvvenrnne 438 (3,847) 3,961 3,650
Total incurred ............... 1,030,093 798214 833,058 8,584,109
Paid related to:
Current year .......ceevennee. 590,791 481,710 519,627 4,923,259
Prior years ....cococoervivennnnne 417,105 288,158 278,042 3475875
Total paid ..ccoovrrverrnrinnnn 1,007,896 769,868 797,669 8,399,134
Foreign currency
translation adjustments ........ (1,987) — — (16,558)
Net balance at end of year .... 789,752 627,602 599,256 6,581,267
Plus reinsurance
recoverables ..o 342,132 247,861 255,696 2,851,100
Balance at end of year .......... ¥1,131,884 ¥875463 ¥854,952 $9.432,367

Prior year claims and expenses incurred in the preceding table
resulted principally from settling claims established in earlier acci-
dent years for amounts that differed from expectations.

The reinsurance recoverables referred to above are reconciled to
the balance sheet carrying amounts as follows:

9. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial state-
ment carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Total income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 were allocated as follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
2003 2002 2001 2003
__{Restaied)

Income before extraordinary

items and cumulative effect

of accounting changes ......... ¥ 71,614 ¥ 33416 ¥44359 $ 596,782
Cumulative effect of

accounting changes ............ — 48,033 —_ —_
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) of securitics
during the year .... (188,667) (118,901) (89,605) (1,572,225)
Minimum pension liability
adjustments ..........cvcecneene (22,613)  (16,860) 2,046 (188,442)

¥(139,666) ¥ (54,312) ¥(43,200) $(1,163,885)

The Company is subject to a number of taxes based on income,
which in the aggregate resulted in a normal tax rate of approxi-
mately 36% in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

The effective tax rates of the Company for the years ended March
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 differ from the Japanese normal income
tax rates for the following reasons:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
2003 2002 2003 (Restated)
Property and casualty: Japanese normal income tax rate 36.0% 36.0% 36.0%
Unpaid 10SSES .ovevvveeveriirrcree e ¥342,132 ¥247,861 $2,851,100 Tax credit for dividends reccived 3.0) [€8))] 4.7)
Paid 10SSES ..ot 107,885 84,826 899,042 Expenses not deductible for tax
Life oo e 328 — 2,733 PULIPOSES .eovrnrererenrarreerserereanserereesennene 0.9 1.2 1.2
Total reinsurance recoverable : OthEr ..ot 1.7 07 0.8
ONOSSES ..o ¥450,345 ¥332,687  $3,752,875 Effective tax rate ....occoovveviviereicennnns 35.6% 30.8% 33.3%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signifi-
cant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at
March 31, 2003 and 2002 are presented below:

(Yen in miltions} (Dollars in thousands)

2003 2002 2003
(Restated)
Deferred tax assets:
Net unpaid and unreported
1OSSES c.vvvirrierieeriee e cmeir e ¥ 84,817 ¥ 70,102 $ 706,808
Future policy benefits and losscs .. 13,501 9,315 112,508
Retirement and severance
benefits oo 47,689 34,467 397,408
Minimum pension liability
AdJUSEMCNLS oovevrrerereee e 50,707 28,094 422,558
Valuation allowance for credit
JOSSES 1ovivieireirre e riree vt e 12,743 9,985 106,192
Property, cquipment and other
assets ......... e 49,910 10,603 415,917
Derivatives ....covvererveccninienerirennas 33,995 24,160 283,292
Operating loss carryforwards
for tax purposes 10,311 — 85,925
Other ....ccovvrercrrirercrens 33,036 11,788 275,300
Total deferred tax asscts 336,709 198,514 2,805,908
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net uneamned premiums ...c..eeevne (47,552) (24,929) (396,267)
Deferred policy acquisition costs..  (151,996) (108,334)  (1,266,634)
Fair value adjustments to
sccurities recognized in income ... (88,828) (3,046) (740,234)
Derivatives ...ocevcrerenerireencnininens (89,134) (74.977) (742,783)
Other covvvirerirer s (12,225) (9,466) (101,875)
Total deferred tax liabilities ...... (389,735) (220,752)  (3,247,793)
Net deferred tax liabilities
before deferred taxes on
unrealized appreciation
Of SECUTILIES 1.vvvveircverreririecriae (53,026) (22,238) (441,885)
Deferred taxes on unrealized
appreciation of sccurities ............. (321,037) (509,704)  (2,675,307)
Net deferred tax liabilities ....... (374,063) (531,942)  (3,117,192)
Income taxes currently payable ........ (63,497) (43,758) (529,141)
Income tax liability .......c.coeevenne ¥(437,560)  ¥(575,700) $(3,646,333)

Operating loss carryfowards for tax purposes of consolidated
subsidiaries at March 31, 2003 amounted to ¥28,641 million
($238,675 thousand) and are available through 2008 to offset
against future taxable income of such subsidiaries.

The Company has not provided a valuation allowance for the de-
ferred tax assets at March 31, 2003 and 2002. Management believes
that it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the ben-
efit of the deferred tax assets. While there are no assurances that this
benefit will be realized, the Company expects sufficient taxable in-
come in the future, based on its historical record and expected future
results to realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets.
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10. RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS

Employees of the Company are covered by the defined retirement
and severance benefit plans described below.

The Company has an unfunded lump-sum payment retirement
plan covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employ-
ees are entitled to lump-sum payments based on points, which are
accumulated each year by the employees’ rank, length of service
and certain other factors, upon retirement or termination of employ-
ment for reasons other than dismissal for cause. Directors and statu-
tory auditors are covered by a separate plan. It is not the policy of
management to fund the retirement and severance benefits de-
scribed above.

The Company also has a funded pension plan covering substan-
tially all employees who meet age and service requirements. The
plan covers a portion of the welfare pension plan administered by
the Japanese government.

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions,” the net periodic benefit costs of the funded pension plan
in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were calculated using the unit credit actu-
arial cost method.

L 1o
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Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit
obligations and the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

(Yen in millions)

{Dollars in thousands}

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended
March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

{Ye¢n in millions) {Dollars in th
2003 2002 2003 2003 2002 2001 2003
Change in benefit obligation: Components of net periodic
Benefit obligation at beginning benefit cost:
Of YA v e nrarees ¥ 430,950 ¥ 338,858  $ 3,591,250 Service cost ..o..vveveerenenes ¥19,148  ¥15494  ¥15301  $159,567
Adjustment in connection InterestCost .vvvvinrcnininns 10,874 11,389 9,060 90,617
with the acquisition .......c.c.cee.con.e. 40,690 — 339,083 Expected retum
Service cost 19,148 15,494 159,567 on plan assets .......c.cocoene (3,108) (3,192) (3,831) (25,900)
Interest cost 10,874 11,389 90,617 Amortization of prior
Plan participants’ contributions .... 2,593 2,115 21,608 SEIVICE COSt cuverervernrenrane 805 2,397 217 6,708
Amendments .. (24,793) 39,576 (206,608) Recognized actuarial loss . 7,162 4,398 3,310 59,683
Actuarial loss . 75,182 35,808 626,517 Net periodic benefit
Benefits paid ..o (21,710) (12,290) (180,917) T SN ¥34,881  ¥30,486  ¥23,623  $290,675
Foreign currency translation
AdJUSMEDS «..venrrermenrecerennrines 3 — (25
Benefit obligationat end of year .. ¥ 532,931  ¥430,950  § 4,441,092
11. DEBT OQUTSTANDING
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets
at beginning of Year ...........o.o.... ¥ 144,710 ¥ 137,667 $ 1205917 Debt outstanding at March 31, 2003 and 2002 comprised the fol-
Adjustment in connection lowing:
with the acquisition ........oveeneene 7,599 — 63,325
Actual return on plan assets........... 1,443 @377) 12,025 Yen i millons) Dot i e
Employe'rc?.onmbutnons‘ ..... o 24,146 9,345 201,217 Due 2003 2002 3003
Plan participants’ contributions .... 2,593 2,115 21,608
Benefits paid .oo.overoereronree (4,932) (4,040) (41,100) Loaps, Q.OS% 104.75% ........ 2007-2016 ¥ 4,673 % — § 38942
Fair value of plan assets at end lfql;;y ol(;;ked notes, 1.00% 2004 4331 36.092
02l (TP TN PPN i i
Of YT ..ot ¥ 175,559 ¥ 144,710 8§ 1,462,992 Fixed rate notes, 0.07% ........ 2004 5,000 _ 41,667
Floating rate notes, 0.06% .... 2005 2,000 — 16,667
Funded status ......cccoeerinivcinneninns ¥(357,372)  ¥(286,240) $(2,978,100) Credit linked notes, 2.56%
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ... 196,049 126,365 1,633,742 t0 11.75% wcrvierireerrereanenens 2007 25,373 — 211,442
Unrecognized prior service cost ... 5,742 31,340 47,850 Unsecured bonds, 1.47%
Net amount recognized................. ¥(155,581)  ¥(128,535) $(1,296,508) 10 2.78% v 2006-2021 135,984 110,000 1,133,198
. 2011 519 — 4,325
Amounts recognized in the Total debt outstanding .. ¥177,880  ¥110,000 $1,482,333
balance sheets consist of:
ﬁ::;fglzzzgﬂlablmy ¥(3§;:gg;) #(2; ]7:335) $(2,;290:g§:) The proceeds of these debts were used primanily for general cor-
Accumulated other porate purposes.
comprehensive income ......... 140,855 78038 1,173,792 Maturities of debt outstanding at March 31, 2003 are as follows:
Netamount recognized............. _¥(155,581)  ¥(128,535)  $(1,296,508)
{Yen in millions) {Dollars in housands)
Significant actuarial assumptions: 2004 ..ot s ¥ 9,331 $ 77,758
Discount rate .....cveevveriverrsienns 1.5% 2.5% 2,000 16,667
Rate of salary increase ...........ovvnne 0.6-1.7% 1.8% 30,000 250,000
Expected long-term return 36,702 305,850
On plan assets ...ovriiieinirniens 1.3-2.0% 2.3% 654 5,450
99,193 826,608
Total debt outstanding ........c.cooeccrvrnncrn. ¥177,880 $1,482,333
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The Company leases certain property and equipment under non-
cancelable lease agreements. At March 31, 2003, obligations under
capital leases which were presented as other liabilities amounted to
¥8,006 million (366,717 thousand). Of this amount, the obligations
due within one year amounted to ¥4,616 million (338,467 thousand).

12. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments” requires disclosure of estimated fair value for all financial
instruments. See notel5 for discussion of fair value of derivative
financial instruments. The carrying amounts and the fair values of
the Company’s nonderivative financial instruments at March 31,
2003 and 2002 are as follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)
Carrying Fait Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
2003:
Policy loans ........c.cccounan ¥ 29171 ¥ 29,171 § 243,092 8 243,092
Mortgage loans on real
ESTALE (evveeiriceerenrrreneraens 148,655 152,379 1,238,792 1,269,825
Mortgage loans
on vessels and facilitics . 22,125 21,637 184,375 180,308
Collateral and bank-
guaranteed loans ............ 22,096 24,190 184,133 201,583
Unsecured loans . 440,997 449,412 3,674,976 3,745,100
Money trust ......covceennn 73,786 73,786 614,883 614,883

Short-term investments .. 660,370 660,370 5,503,083 5,503,083
Investment deposits

by policyholders ............ (2,716,526) (3,094,290) (22,637,7117) (25,785,750)
Debt outstanding ............  (177,880)  (189,307) (1,482,333) (1,577,558)
2002:

Policy loans ..o ¥ 20615 ¥ 20615

Mortgage loans on real

€SLALE ..ocanicncerereeeeraeniins 144,323 145,869

Mortgage loans

on vessels and facilitics . 25,061 25,082

Collateral and bank-

guaranteed loans 29,800 29,768
Unsecured loans . . 404,419 406,169
Money trust ......cccrcrvenenns 76,386 76,386

Short-term investments .. 665,406 665,406
Investment deposits

by policyholders ............ (2,131,834 (2,362,170)
Debt outstanding ............ (110,000) (115,257)

The Company started disclosing fair values of investment depos-
its by policyholders this year.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Com-
pany in estimating the fair values of its nonderivative financial in-
struments:
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Cash and cash equivalents, accrued investment income (included in
other assets), premiums receivable and agents’ balances, reinsurance
recoverable on losses and ceded reinsurance balances payable

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the short ma-
turity of these instruments.

Fixed maturities and equity securities
The carrying amounts and fair values of fixed maturities and equity
securities are disclosed in note 4.

Policy loans

The carrying amounts of floating-rate policy loans approximate
their fair values as the interest rates charged on those instruments
are designed so that they would be adjusted periodically to reflect
changes in overall market interest rates.

Mortgage loans on real estate, other long-term investments and
short-term investments

The fair values for these financial instruments are estimated based
on the quoted market prices for these or similar instruments. For
financial instruments for which quoted market prices are not avail-
able, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
and interest rates currently being offered for similar loans to bor-
rowers with similar credit ratings or for similar deposits.

Investment deposits by policyholders

The fair values of investment deposits by policyholders were esti-
mated using discounted cash flow calculations based on market in-
terest rates currently prevailing for similar contracts with similar
maturities. The cash flows used in fair value calculation were based
on the best estimate assumptions of lapse rates and other factors.

Debt outstanding

The fair values for debt outstanding are estimated using their market
prices. For debt outstanding on which quoted market prices are not
available, the fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis, based on the Company’s current borrowing rate for similar
types of borrowings.
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Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on
relevant market information and information about the financial in-
struments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve un-
certainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could sig-
nificantly affect the estimates.

13. STATUTORY CAPITAL AND DIVIDEND
AVAILABILITY

Millea Holdings is subject to regulatory restrictions on the amount
of dividends distributable to its stockholders. The amount of re-
tained earnings available for dividends is based on the amount re-
corded on the Millea Holdings’ non-consolidated statutory books of
account in accordance with Japanese GAAP. Millea Holdings had
retained earnings in the amount of ¥44,567 million ($371,392 thou-
sand), net of treasury stock in the amount of ¥5,038 million
(841,983 thousand) as of March 31, 2003. The adjustments in-
cluded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to
have them conform with U.S. GAAP, but not recorded in the books
of account, have no effect on the determination of the amount avail-
able for dividends.

Provision has not been made in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of March 31, 2003 for dividends subsequently pro-
posed to Millea Holdings’ stockholders by the Board of Directors in
the aggregate amount of ¥18,519 million ($154,325 thousand).

The insurance subsidiaries of Millea Holdings incorporated in

Japan are required to maintain adequate solvency margins for Japa-
nese regulatory authorities. At March 31, 2003, these subsidiaries
had sufficient capital surplus in their respective statutory stockhold-
ers’ equity to satisfy the solvency margin requirements.

In the parent company only financial statements prepared in con-
formity with Japanese GAAP, Millea Holdings reported net income

of ¥49,605 million (3413,375 thousand) in 2003, ¥39,182 million in:

2002 and ¥43,140 million in 2001, and stockholders’ equity of
¥2,206,053 million ($18,383,775 thousand) at March 31, 2003 and
¥1,803,976 million at March 31, 2002.
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The amounts of statutory net income (loss) for the years ended
March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and stockholders’ equity at March
31, 2003 and 2002 of the consolidated insurance subsidiaries were
as follows:

(Yen in millions) {Dotlars in thousands)

2003 2002 2001 2003

Statutory net income (loss):

Property and casualty ....... ¥ 112,615 ¥12,703 ¥2443 8 938458

Life oo (966) 1 1 (8,050)
Statutory stockholders’
equity:

Property and casualty ....... 2,006,678 67,285 16,722,317

Life o, 46,160 27,437 384,667

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At March 31, 2003, commitments outstanding for the purchase of
property and equipment approximated ¥14,547 million ($121,225
thousand).

The Company occupies certain offices and other facilities and
uses certain equipment under cancelable lease arrangements. Rental
expenses for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 aggre-
gated ¥14,694 million (§122,450 thousand), ¥17,427 million and
¥18,515 million, respectively.

The Company enters into credit default swap transactions to earn
investment returns. The maximum potential amount of future pay-
ments represents the notional amounts that could be lost under the
credit default swaps if there were a total default by the guaranteed
parties, without consideration of possible recoveries under recourse
provisions or from collateral held or pledged. At March 31, 2003,
the Company’s maximum potential amount of future payments un-
der the credit default swaps was approximately ¥1,889,836 million
(315,748,633 thousand). At March 31, 2003, the carrying amount of
the liabilities related to these credit default swaps was ¥16,356 mil-
lion ($136,300 thousand). Other property will be available to the
Company to cover losses, or, the Company will cover losses, net of
some collateral; however, the value of such property or collateral
has not been determined.

See also note 15 for the discussion on credit default swaps, which
had been accounted for as guarantees prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 133.
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Guarantees are used in various transactions to enhance credit
standing of the Company’s customers and third parties. They repre-
sent irrevocable assurances that the Company will make payment in
the event that the customer fails to fulfill its obligation arising from

. guarantees of the indebtedness of third parties, the corporate loans
and bonds, etc., to third parties. The Company is obliged to pay the
outstanding labilities when the guaranteed parties fail to pay princi-
pal and/or interest in accordance with the contractual terms. The
maximum exposure under these guarantees as of March 31, 2003
was approximately ¥22,409 million ($186,742 thousand). At March
31, 2003, the Company did not recognize any liabilities for these
remote loss contingencies. In some cases, those liabilities are se-
cured by the guaranteed parties’ operating assets. Once the Com-
pany assumes the guaranteed parties’ obligation, the Company
acquires the right of the collateral.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in
various legal proceedings. Although there can be no assurances, as
of March 31, 2003, the Company believes, based on information
currently available, that the ultimate resolution of these legal pro-
ceedings would not be likely to have a material adverse effect on its
results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments in its normal
course of business (a) to manage interest rate risk, (b) to manage
foreign exchange risk and (c) for other purposes. Although some
types of these derivatives economically hedge the Company’s risk
exposure, they do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS
No.133. All derivatives are recognized on the consolidated balance
sheets at fair value as “derivative assets” or “derivative liabilities,”
with the changes in fair value recognized currently in earnings as
“gains (losses) on derivatives.”
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(a) Derivatives used for interest rate risk management

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate expo-
sures arising from mismatches between assets and liabilities (in-
cluding duration mismatches). The Company’s insurance liabilities
that bear credited interest rates, mainly those relating to deposit-
type insurance and life insurance, are exposed to the risk of declines
in interest rates. The Company’s strategy is to match the interest rate
characteristics and duration of those liabilities with those of in-
vested assets through its asset hability management, including the
use of interest rate swaps. An interest rate swap is an agreement,
generally, to exchange fixed and floating rate interest payments
without exchange of the underlying principal.

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133 at April 1, 2001, the interest rate
swaps used for this purpose do not qualify for hedge accounting,
and the Company recognized a net-of-tax cumulative-effect-type
gain of ¥93,907 million on April 1, 2001.

(b) Derivatives used for foreign exchange risk management

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exposures arising
mainly from foreign currency fixed maturity investments and foreign
currency receivables/payables in relation to hull and marine cargo in-
surance and certain reinsurance. The Company uses foreign exchange
derivatives, such as foreign exchange forwards and cross-currency
swaps, to effectively manage those foreign currency exposures. A
foreign exchange forward is an agreement to exchange different cur-
rencies at a specific future date. A cross-currency swap is an agree-
ment to exchange coupon payments in one currency for coupon
payments in another currency, where the principal amount of each
currency is generally exchanged at the beginning and end of the term.

(c) Derivatives used for other purposes
The Company enters into credit default swaps as an alternative to
credit insurance it provides. A credit default swap is a contract that
provides the buyer with protection against the risk of a default by
the reference entity in return for periodic payments to the seller.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS No.133, the Company had treated
credit default swaps as guarantees. In accordance with SFAS
No.133, the Company now accounts for them as derivatives, which
are recognized at fair value.

The Company uses bond futures, equity index futures and other
instruments to manage market risks.

The Company uses foreign exchange forwards, bond futures, eq-
uity index options, equity index futures and other instruments to
earn investment returns.
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The carrying amounts and the fair values of the Company’s de-
rivative financial instruments at March 31, 2003 and 2002 are as
follows:

(Yen in millions) (Dollars in thousands)

Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilities
2003:
Interest rate swaps ........... ¥315,171 ¥(162,019) 32,626,425 $(1,350,158)
Foreign exchange
forwards .......coocerereecenenn. 177 2,127) 1,475 (17,725)
CurTency SWaps ............... 14,881 (15,329) 124,008 (127,742)
Credit default swaps ........ 9,563 (23,050) 79,692 (192,083)
Bond futures 26 (56) 217 (467)
Equity index futures ........ 633 — 5,275 —_
[671:15 U 828 (430) 6,900 (3,583)
Total derivatives ...... ¥341,279  ¥(203,011) $2,843,992 §$(1,691,758)
2002:
Interest rate swaps ........... ¥202,390 ¥ (53,348)
Foreign exchange
forwards ....cccoornericenncns 582 (15,633)
Currency swaps ..... . 216 (9,883)
Credit default swaps ........ 3,639 (14,061)
Bond futures 61 (359)
Equity index options ....... 211 (168)
Equity index futures ........ 113 214)
Other ....ccecrcrecieaenn — [€1))
Total derivatives ... ¥207,212 ¥ (93,692)

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company
in estimating the fair values of its derivative financial instruments:

Interest rate swaps

The fair values of interest rate swaps are based on the estimated
present values the Company would receive or pay to terminate
agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the
current creditworthiness of the counterparties.

Foreign exchange forwards and currency swaps

The fair values of foreign exchange derivatives including forwards
and currency swaps are estimated by obtaining current market
quotes from banks.

Credit default swaps

The fair values of credit default swaps are estimated by obtaining
current market quotes from counterparties, if available. If quoted
market prices are not available, as is the case primarily with credit
default swaps on pools of multiple reference assets, then the fair
value is based upon estimates calculated by thc Company’s internal
model reflecting prevailing market conditions and certain other fac-
tors relating to the structure of the transaction.
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Equity index futures and options, and bond futures
The fair values of equity index futures, equity index options and
bond futures are based on the official market quotes.

Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on
relevant market information and information about the financial in-
struments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve un-
certainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could sig-
nificantly affect the estimates.

16. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is organized according to products and services
which it offers. This structure is considered in the identification of
its two reportable segments. These segments and their respective
operations are as follows:

Property and Casualty

Property and Casualty segment writes marine, fire and casualty, au-
tomobile and allied lines of insurance principally covering risks lo-
cated in Japan and hull and cargo risks for Japanese businesses. The
Company evaluates the results of this segment based upon premium
income and underwriting results.

Life

Life insurance products primarily include whole-life insurance. The
Company evaluates the results of this segment based upon amounts
of policies and net income.

The accounting policies of the business segments are the same as
those described in the notes to consolidated financial statements.
The effects of the elimination of certain intersegment transactions
are included in the Property and Casualty segment result. The fol-
lowing are income and asset data for the Company’s business seg-
ments for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. See note
2 for discussion of restatements and reclassifications.




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

{Yen in millions)

(Yen in millions)

Property and Property and
Casualty . Life C Casuatty Life C
2003: 2002 (Restated):
Operating income: Operating income:
Property and casualty: Property and casualty:
Net premiums written ......c......... ¥1,898,557 ¥ — ¥ 1,898,557 Net premiums written ................ ¥1,381,483 ¥ —  ¥1,381,483
Less increase in uncarned Less increase in unearmed
PICIMIUMS .eovvierecerncierceninrenes 137,589 — 137,589 premiums ... 38,521 — 38,521
Premiums eamed ..........coveveee. 1,760,968 — 1,760,968 Premiums eamed 1,342,962 — 1,342,962
Life premiums ........cccovrinerinnenne — 262,486 262,486 Life premiums ......cccvevonueerevenerrnenns — 209,208 209,208
Net investment income . 93,129 15,182 108 311 Net investment income ... 94,386 10,295 104,681
Realized losses on investments ... (28,310) (1,365) (29,875) Realized gains (losscs) on
INVESTMENES covvvereererireceeeccnirerirnnes (1,384) 364 (1,020)
Gains on derivatives .........cooeveeene. 55,044 21,520 76,564 Gains (losses) on derivatives ......... (20,847) 13,528 (1,319
Total operating income........... 1,880,831 297,623 2,178,454 Total operating income........... 1,415,117 233,395 1,648,512
Operating costs and expenses: Operating costs and expenses:
Losses, claims and loss adjustment Losses, claims and loss adjustment
expenses 1,030,093 — 1,030,093 expenses 798,214 — 798,214
Policy benefits and losses for life .. — 223316 223,316 Policy benefits and losses for life .. — 175,016 175,016
Income credited to investment Income credited to investment
deposits by policyholders 54,111 1,900 56,011 deposits by policyholders 56,422 1,085 57,507
Policy acquisition costs ........cc....... 544,147 26,911 571,058 Policy acquisition costs . 418,979 18,033 437,012
Other operating expenses .............. 85,859 10,809 96,668 Other operating eXpenses .............. 63,751 8,344 72,095
Total operating costs and Total operating costs and
EXPENSES evvveariuereersemcriecniene 1,714,210 262,936 1,977,146 EXPENSES weeverecrcrerrrrereerenerenes 1,337,366 202,478 1,539,844
Income before income tax Income before income tax
expense and extraordinary expense and cumulative
TEEITIS v e eveecnin s 166,621 34,687 201,308 effect of accounting
Changes ....cucovereveecrecrmniennnns 717,751 30,917 108,668
Income tax expense (bencfit): Income tax expense (benefit):
(61375 { 1 SN UURTUOON 83,022 9,913 92,935 CUITCNE 1oecrreeer v e 50,070 3,890 53,960
Deferred .vveererereeeemeiienecs e (25,237) 3916 (21,321) Deferred .ooovvvnreeeneeierirrisen i, (27,806) 7,262 (20,544)
57,785 13,829 71,614 22,264 11,152 33,416
Income before extraordinary Income before cumulative
TECIMS caereeeirrer e ireemrens e, 108,836 20,858 129,694 effect of accounting
Changes ..c..u.vererenveervereennnns 55,487 19,765 75,252
Cumulative effect of accounting
Extraordinary items ......c....corrvivvenens 248,323 — 248,323 changes, net of tax 56,727 28,738 85,465
Net iNCOMC ..ovvervreerieeercrraecrnas ¥ 357,159 ¥ 20,858 ¥ 378,017 NetinCome .ocvevvrrcercrririnins ¥ 112,214 ¥ 48503 ¥ 160,717
Total iINVeStMEnts ............ceevecrrnivean ¥ 7,119,333 ¥1,225870 ¥ 8,345,203 Total inVeStments .......cceeveveeercerinennns ¥6,068,201  ¥560,624 ¥6,628,825
TOtal ASSELS ovevevercrnrrererceveecreenens ¥ 9,513,060 ¥ 1,380,303 ¥ 10,893,363 TOtal ASSCLS c.vveererrrereererire e ¥7,823,947 ¥735,230 ¥8,559,177
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Miliea Holdings, inc. and subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Yen in millions)

(Dollars in thousands)

Property and Property and
Casualty Life C Casualty Life Consolidated
2001 (Restated): 2003:
Operating income: Operating income:
Property and casualty: Property and casualty:
Net premiums written ..............  ¥1,323907 ¥ —  ¥1,323,907 Net premiums written ...............  $15,821,308 $ — $15,821,308
Less increase in uncarmed Less increase in unearned
PIEMIUMS +ocoerrererenerecrereonnreres 13,168 — 13,168 PIEMIUIMS .covevrerererrernrnernrereenes 1,146,575 — 1,146,575
Premiums earned 1,310,739 — 1,310,739 Premiums earned . 14,674,733 — 14,674,733
Life premiums ............ — 162,905 162,905 Life premiums .............. — 2,187,383 2,187,383
Net investment income .............oo.. 115,594 12,258 127,852 Net investment income 776,075 126,517 902,592
Realized gains on investments ... 55,859 283 56,142 Realized losses on investments....... (235,917) (13,041)  (248,958)
Total operating income........... 1,482,192 175446 1,657,638 Gains on derivatives ..o, 458,700 179,333 638,033
_ Total operating income............ 15,673,591 2,480,192 18,153,783
Operating costs and expensces:
Losses, claims and loss adjustment Operating costs and cxpenses:
EXPETISCS vovoverererreenrarrseemrensenssninas 833,058 — 833,058 Losses, claims and loss adjustment
Policy benefits and losses for life .. — 137,469 137,469 CXPEINISES 1uvrvereerarnrrsronsersarsressinesssens 8,584,109 — 8,584,109
Income credited to investment Policy benefits and losses for life .. — 1,860,967 1,860,967
deposits by policyholders ............. 58,669 840 59,509 Income credited to investment
Policy acquisition costs ........c........ 413,594 8,957 422,551 deposits by policyholders ............. 450,925 15,833 466,758
Other operating eXpenses .............. 66,048 5,969 72,017 Policy acquisition costs ...... 4,534,559 224,258 4,758,817
Total operating costs and Other operating expenses ... 715,491 90,075 805,566
EXPRIISES «.evrverenevrerrerserearierens 1,371,369 153,235 1,524,604 Total operating costs and
EXPENSES ..eovvrererrerernerersareenens 14,285,084 2,191,133 16,476,217
Income before income tax
EXPEISE ccevererer serenirmrncarenesnons 110,823 22,211 133,034 Income before income tax
expense and extraordinary
Income tax expensc: I vo - SO 1,388,507 289,059 1,677,566
9,952 2,934 12,886
Deferred .......cooviciireecieniennniiennin 26,301 5,172 31,473 Income tax expense (benefit):
36,253 8,106 44,359 CUITENL ..ottt 691,850 82,608 774,458
Deferred ....ocvuveirevencnnrirenns s (210,309) 32,633 (177,676)
NEINCOME correvceecs e ¥ 74570 ¥ 14,105 ¥ 88,675 481,541 115241 596,782
: Income before extraordinary
Total INVESIMENMS ovve v ¥6,417,143  ¥400.801  ¥6,817,944 T S 906,966 173,818 1,080,784
Total ASSELS ....oecvevernreersierensesaeramrasenes ¥7,735,940 ¥480,801 ¥8,216,74! EXraordinary iems ....oooserroerreen 2,069,358 — 2,069,358
NetinCome .....coveereeeureeeernne $ 2,976,324 § 173,818 § 3,150,142

a1

Total investments ........coocceeervrierennne

Total SSELS c.evverrrerrerreerrneesinereeveans

$59,327,775 $10,215,583 $69,543,358

$79,275,500 $11,502,525 $90,778,025




Millea Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Millea Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Millea Holdings, Inc. (a successor United States Securities and Exchange
Commission registrant of The Tokio Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited) and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, cash flows and comprehensive income for each of the years in the three-year
period ended March 31, 2003, all expressed in yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Millea
Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended March 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in note 1(g) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative
instruments and hedging activities in the year ended March 31, 2002. As discussed in note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the accompanying consolidated financial statements for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31, 2002 have been
restated.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into United States dollars solely for the convenience of the reader.
We have recomputed the translation and, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements expressed in yen have been translated into
United States dollar on the basis set forth in note 1(a) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

XPNeG

Tokyo, Japan
September 4, 2003
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‘Noi59, Jalan Melaka Raya 25

Taman Melaka Raya 75000. Melaka L
o L’ABUAN '
.. Tokio Marine Global Re Lzmzted Labuan Branch

“(Kuala Limpur Marketing Office:

~:Menara Dion;, #34-01, Jalan Sultan Tsmail, -
50250 Kuala Lumpur) .

T SINGAPORE
S AR SINGAPORE

- Pte. Limited
-6 Shenton Way #23-08; DBS Bulldmg Tawer Two,
" Singapare 068809
* SINGAPORE )
..Millea Asia Pte. Lud,
* " 6 Shenton Way #25-09, DBS Buﬂdxng Tower Two,
T 'Smgapor'e 058%
j’.' SINGAPORE :
.Tokio Marine Asset Management Imernanonal Pte. Ltd.
. 6 Shenton Way #23-08, DBS Building, Tower Two,
... Singapore 068809
& SINGAPORE
18 Amoy Street, Level 2, Singapore 089900

2nd Floor A:rport Business Park Bldg “Suite 208790 Mahidol Rd

58B (an Floor) Persiaran Creentown L Greer'xtov;'n Busmess:Centre

- e/la- MNT Offshore Insurance (L) Ltd Level:11: (E), Mam Office - > :
Tower, Financial Park Labuan, ]alan Merdeka 87000 WP Labuan B A * NEW DELHI

‘The Tokio Marine and Fire Insurance Company (Smgapare)

nd subsidisries Lo

T dsuransiT 0kto Manne Indonesla e

SentraJ-Senayan I, 3rd & 4tn Floors J] Asia Afnca No.-S- ]aka
10270 - o '

T. Asuransi T okw Manne Indanesm, Batam Representan

Oﬂ' ice

ernational Assurance Com _l_pany,‘Hanbvi Branc
th Floor, Sun Red River,23 Phan Chu rmh Street Hoan K
1 1stnct, Hanox e

*. HO Cl{l MINH CITY
Vietnam International Assurance Com, any

~10th Floor; Saigon Trade Center, 37 Ton duc Thané. Dis,
“H 'Chl Mmh Clty ) R v

YANGON" '
‘FMI-Centre, Room No 908 9th Floor No..380,
Bcgyoke Aung San Street Pabedan Township, Yangon

Lower Ground Floor A-11/1, Vasant Vihar, New Delhl 11005 7.

EW.DELHI ..

EFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd. Delht Branch

: FALBuilding; 10, Shaheed Jeet Singh Marg,
1 QutubInstingtional Area, New Delhi 110067

IFFCO-TOKIO. General Insurance Co, L, CP Off' ce
505 K4ilash. Bu11dmg 26K G. Marg, New Dethi 110001

% HARYANA'

~“dthiFioor, Palm Court, Plot Ne 20/4, Mehsauli- Gurgaon Road
'Sukhrah Chowk Gurgaon, Haryana 122001
* ’HARYANA

IFF.CO-TOKIO Insurance Services Led. :
- Ath Floor, Palm Court, Plot No 20/4, Mehsauli-Gurgaon, Road
RS gkhrah Chowk, Gurgaon, Haryana 122001
S * NOIDA

i IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd., Noida Office
KRIBHCO Building, 11 Floor, A-10, Sector 1, "Noida 20 30t

" IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd., Ahmedabad
“Branch !
45, Drive in Road, Opposite to Dev Bhumi, Apartments, Near
Navrang Pura; Ahmedabad 380009
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. IEFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd. Corporale 0_[}‘ ce‘”

% AHMEDABAD -



Miliea Hdl_c_ﬁngs. fnc. -and sul

3rd Block Kamataka State Marketmg berauon
igham‘Road Bangalore 560052 SR

¥ OIMBATORE :
IFF CO-TOKIO General Insurance Co Ltd.
i

FFCO-TOKIO: General Insurance Co. Ltd.
'/O IFFCO 8 Gokhale Marg Lucknow 226001

,FF CO-TOKIO General Irisurance Co. Ltd.
-1t Floor, Sohan Singh:Complex, Shastn Nagar, Near Railway
Crossmg_; Ludhiana; 141002 -

MUMBAI B ' ‘ B
" JFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd. Bandra Office
“C/OIFFCO, 181 Waterfle]d Road, Bandra (\Nest) Mumbai-400050

‘ * MUMBAI . .
L FCO-Ti OKIO General Insurance Co. L{d. Nariman- Pomt

)ffice-
1404 Maker Chamber No. 3, 14th Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Road,
Nanman Point, Mumbai 400021

© % MUMBAI :

" JEFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd.

:ILFS Building, G Block, C-22, Quadrant A, 3rd Fleor, Bandra Kurla
Complex Bandra East, Mumbai 400051

o .* ‘CHANDIGARH
o IFF CO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd.
=JFFCO-COMPLEX

Plot No.2:(B&C) Sector 28-A, Madhya Marg, Chandxgarh 160002

-..*.NAGPUR )
JFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd.
- Block No. 2, Rohera Arcade, Ist Floor, Ajni Square, Wardha Road,
. “Nagpur 440015

* PUNE
IFFCO-TOKIQ General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Kapil Towers, A-301, 45, Ambedkar Road, Near RTO Office Pune
411001
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Lise AN R World Trade Center let Centu:y :
Road Surat 395003

Mezzanme Floor; Meghdhanush Bu ildmg Near Transﬁek Circle
i Road Vadodara 390007 S




a-kn, Tokyo 100-0004,

Jersey 07303-2502, US.A







